
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 7, 2007, 1:30 P.M. 
SOPER COMMUNITY CENTER, 220 COE AVENUE 

SEASIDE, CALIFORNIA 
 

WATERMASTER BOARD: 
City of Seaside – Mayor Ralph Rubio, Chairman 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner – Director Bob Costa, Vice Chairman 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District – Director Michelle Knight, Secretary 
City of Monterey – Vice Mayor Jeff Haferman, Treasurer 
City of Sand City – Mayor David Pendergrass 
California American Water – Director Steve Leonard 
City of Del Rey Oaks – Mayor Joseph Russell 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency - Supervisor Jerry Smith, District  4 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno 
 
  
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES; 

The minutes of the Special Board of Meeting of January 31, 2007 and the Regular Board of 
February 7, 2007 are attached to this agenda.  Watermaster Board is requested to approve the 
minutes.  

  
IV.      REVIEW OF AGENDA 

If there are any items that arose after the 72-hour posting deadline, a vote may be  
taken to add the item to the agenda, pursuant to the requirements of Government  
Code Section 54954.2(b).  (A 2/3-majority vote is required.) 
 

V.        PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/ ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
Oral communications is on each meeting agenda in order to provide members of the public an 
opportunity to address the Watermaster on matters within its jurisdiction.  Matters not 
appearing on the agenda will not receive action at this meeting but may be referred to the 
Watermaster Administrator or may be set for a future meeting.  Presentations will be limited to 
three minutes or as otherwise established by the Watermaster.  In order that the speaker may be 
identified in the minutes of the meeting, it is helpful if speakers would use the microphone and 
state their names.  Oral communications are now open 
 

VI.      CONSENT CALENDAR 
A.  Request approval for payment of February, 2007 bills 
B.  Approve Current Fiscal Year Financial Reports 
 
 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

VII.     OLD BUSINESS 
  
        A.   COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
1. TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

a) Accept Report on Implementation Plan and Schedule for the Seaside 
Groundwater Basin Watermaster Monitoring and Management Program 

 
b)  Award contract for Phase I Implementation and Analysis to RBF     

Consulting and Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, 
(MPWMD)/Monterey County Water Resources Agency, (MCWRA) 

 
2.    BUDGET/FINANCE COMMITTEE 

          No Current Report 
 

VIII.    NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Adopt for Water Year 2007 a Declaration regarding the Unavailability of Artificial 
Replenishment Water  (Water Year 2007 Allocations attached) 

B. Refer to Budget/Finance Committee for development of criteria implementing Section III. 
M. 1. d. of Judgment- Credit Toward Replenishment Assessment 

C. Adopt an Amended Rules and Regulations of the Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Watermaster (copy attached) 

D. Review and accept the format for a timeline of meaningful future events for 
Watermaster consideration. (Milestone Report) 

E. Approve credit to California American Water of $465,252 against Water Year 2006 
Replenishment Assessment for replenishment water jointly made available through 
MPWMD and California American Water’s pilot ASR project 

F. Authorize Executive Officer to finalize report to Court for submission by March 13, 2007 
(draft report enclosed)  

 
IX.   INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (No Action Required) 
    

A.  Copy of Agreement Between The Seaside Basin Watermaster and Martin B. Feeney 
for Professional Services to Implement the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Seawater Sentinel Monitoring Wells Work Plan       

 
 X. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS 
 
 XI  NEXT MEETING DATE –APRIL 4, 2007  1:30 P.M. 
 
 XII.      ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
This agenda was forwarded via e-mail to the City Clerks of Seaside, Monterey, Sand City and Del Rey Oaks; the Clerk of the Monterey Board of Supervisors; the Clerk to 
the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District; the Clerk at the Monterey County Water Resources Agency and the California American Water Company for posting 
on March 2, 2007 per the Ralph M. Brown Act. Government Code Section 54954.2(a).. 



 
III. 

 
APPROVAL OF 

MINUTES 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Special Meeting January 31, 2007 
Page 1 of 4 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 

January 31, 2007 
 

MINUTES 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 Chairman Rubio called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. at the City Of Seaside, City 

Hall Council Chambers, 440 Harcourt Avenue. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 City of Seaside – Mayor Ralph Rubio, Chairman 
 Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner –Director Bob Costa, Vice Chairman 
 Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (“MPWMD”) – Director Michelle 

Knight, Secretary 
 City of Monterey – Les Turnbeau (Alternate for Vice Mayor Jeff Haferman,) 
 City of Sand City – Mayor David Pendergrass 
 California American Water Co. (“Cal-Am”) –Director Steve Leonard 
 City of Del Rey Oaks – Mayor Joseph Russell 
 Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency (“MCWRA”) – 

Supervisor Jerry Smith, District 4  
 Coastal Subarea Landowner –Director Paul Bruno 
 
III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 There were no comments from the public. 
 
IV. SPECIAL MEETING BUSINESS 

A. Sentinel Wells Work Plan and Scope  
B. Authorization for contract 
CEO Evans reviewed orally the historical development of the Watermaster and the 
Basin Monitoring and Management Plan (“BMMP”).  
 
March 13, 2007 is the deadline set by the court for Watermaster to have entered 
into a contract for services for BMMP oversight and implementation of well drilling. 
At the January 17, 2007 regular Watermaster meeting, Director Leonard submitted 
a summary detailing an expedited scope of work for determining site locations and 
installing monitoring wells. The Watermaster Technical Advisory Committee 
(“TAC”) was directed by Watermaster to recommend an approach to be taken to 
gain Watermaster approval for selection of well sites by June 11, 2007. The TAC 
was also directed to review the proposals for program management submitted by 
MPWMD/MCWRA and RBF in light of the summary submitted by Director Leonard. 
Additionally, the TAC was to obtain a proposal and scope of work from Mr. Martin 
Feeney to carry out the tasks outlined in Director Leonard’s submitted summary.  
 
The Board reviewed the submitted copy of Mr. Feeney’s scope of work and 
proposal. The TAC, chaired by Ms. Ingersoll, met last Monday. Ms. Ingersoll 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Special Meeting January 31, 2007 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

relayed a TAC concern regarding significant changes in conductivity requiring 
placement of additional wells beyond those planned for. The TAC does support Mr. 
Feeney’s proposal and work plan, but cautions that the recommended contract not 
to exceed $850,000 is very dependent on the data gathered as work progresses. 
 
The TAC recommends that the Board approve the Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Watermaster Seawater Sentinel Wells Work Plan and associated Scope of Work 
submitted by Martin Feeney. 
 
Mr. Feeney addressed the Board regarding the TAC concern of change in 
conductivity representing seawater being detected during monitoring. Such a 
change would not be immediately detected. He stated that any need for additional 
placement of wells beyond those planned for would be determined through data 
collection and analysis of conductivity change over time. The previous plan had the 
same risk of further exploration being needed due to conductivity change.  
 
Mr. Feeney explained why there are no planned sentinel wells in the southern part 
of the basin. Water levels in the southern coastal Seaside Basin are above sea 
level and there is a strong seaward gradient resulting in the area being not 
particularly susceptible to seawater intrusion. Groundwater in the southern basin is 
shallow to the point that it rises to the surface and forms Roberts Lake, and then 
discharges to the ocean via a controlled rock structure. Moreover, there are 
currently several wells located in the southern coastal Seaside Basin area. The 
proposed wells are sited in Fort Ord where water levels are fifty feet below sea 
level, where no wells are currently located, and where there is no data from the 
deep zones regarding seawater. The base of the groundwater basin in the Fort Ord 
area is approximately 800 - 1,500 feet; in the southern coastal area the base is 
approximately 100’. The BMMP does not currently include networking existing 
southern coastal area wells (the CDM well, many wells at the end of Bay Street, 
and some along Dunes Drive). 
 
Joe Oliver, MPWMD Senior Hydrologist, expressed his opinion that there is 
groundwater production potential in the southern coastal basin area, but it is 
significantly less than production in other areas of the basin. He further commented 
that any significant change in water quality that the planned monitoring program 
brings to light is part of the exploration phase of the BMMP and a recommendation 
for the installation of an additional well or wells could be possible in the near future. 
Mr. Oliver described the boundary of the North Coastal Subarea as just north of 
the entrance of Fort Ord near the previous location of Stilwell Hall. 
 
Moved by Director Turnbeau, seconded by Director Smith, and unanimously 
carried, to approve the recommendation from the Technical Advisory 
Committee to enter into a contract with Mr. Martin Feeney for the scope of 
work outlined in his submitted Seawater Sentinel Monitoring Wells Work 
Plan dated January 26, 2007 and authorize the Watermaster Chief Executive 
Officer to prepare and execute a contract, not to exceed $850,000.  



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Special Meeting January 31, 2007 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 
C. BMMP Project Management 
Ms. Ingersoll, TAC Chair, recommended the Board consider approving an 
expenditure request from Monterey Peninsula Water Management District for 
$7,080 to collect winter and spring 2007 quarterly groundwater quality samples 
from key coastal monitoring wells as outlined in the BMMP and to comply with 
Judge Randall’s 1/12/07 directive. The quarterly collection of samples is in addition 
to MPWMD’s budgeted annual collection of samples. Approval of this expenditure 
would allow implementation of the BMMP on an interim basis until a longer term 
contract with MPWMD for additional, prioritized tasks is considered for 
authorization by the Board.  
 
Ms. Ingersoll stated that the TAC intends to provide the Board at its February 7, 
2007 regular meeting a recommendation for award of contract not to exceed 
$35,000 to RBF to work with an appointed TAC subcommittee to refine and re-
scope the BMMP to cost effectively expedite the court directives. Scope refining 
includes coordinating with Mr. Feeney’s work plan to develop a prima vera 
schedule as a basis for re-scoping the entire BMMP. The TAC subcommittee 
would consist of TAC member representatives from Seaside, California American 
Water, MPWMD, and MCWRA. Other interested TAC members not appointed to 
the subcommittee are invited to attend subcommittee meetings and would be 
notified of the content of meetings via email.  
 
The BMMP may need to be amended and Mr. Jacobs suggested that the March 
13, 2007 court hearing would be a good time to submit an alternate BMMP to the 
judge. 
 
Moved by Mayor Pendergrass, seconded by Director Smith, and unanimously 
carried, to approve a contract with the Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District/Monterey County Water Resources Agency for $7,080 for Seaside 
Groundwater Basin Program interim water quality sampling management 
services and to amend the budget accordingly, and to direct the Technical 
Advisory Committee to report back to Watermaster on February 7, 2007, with a 
recommendation on award of contract not to exceed $35,000 to RBF to refine 
and re-scope the BMMP.  

 
V. Chair Rubio adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 2:04 p.m. to consider 

specific matters: 
A. Public employee Performance Evaluation: Government Code Section 

54957. 
1. Title: Chief Executive Officer 

  
VI. REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULED FOR WEDNESDAY, February 7, 2007 1:30 

P.M., SOPER FIELD, SEASIDE, CALIFORNIA  
 
VII. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Special Meeting January 31, 2007 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

There were no reports from directors. 
  
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, Chairman Rubio adjourned the meeting at 2:41 p.m. 

 
 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Board Meeting 2/7/07 
Page 1 of 7 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 

February 7, 2007 
 

MINUTES 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Rubio called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. in the Seaside Community Center at 
Soper Field, 220 Coe Avenue, Seaside. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
City of Seaside – Mayor Ralph Rubio, Chairman 
Laguna Seca Subarea Landowner –Director Bob Costa, Vice Chairman 
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District – Director Michelle Knight, Secretary 
City of Monterey – Vice Mayor Jeff Haferman 
City of Sand City – Mayor David Pendergrass 
California American Water Co. – Director Steve Leonard 
City of Del Rey Oaks – Mayor Joseph Russell 
Coastal Subarea Landowner – Director Paul Bruno 
Monterey County/Monterey County Water Resources Agency – Curtis Weeks (alternate for 
Supervisor Jerry Smith, District 4) 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF January 17, 2007 Regular Meeting 
CEO Evans advised the Board of a correction: Director Lehman (alternate for Director Knight) 
voted no on the motion regarding the alternative presented for providing consulting services for 
Management and Implementation of the Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
(“BMMP”). 
 

Moved by Mayor Pendergrass, seconded by Mayor Russell, and 
unanimously carried, to approve the Watermaster January 17, 2007, 
Regular Meeting minutes as corrected. 

 
IV. REVIEW OF AGENDA 
There were no changes to the agenda.  
 
V. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
There were no questions or comments from the public. 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A.  Request approval for payment of January, 2007 bills 
 

Contract Compensation—CEO  $5,700.00 
Reimbursable—General     1,143.36 

 
Moved by Director Leonard, seconded by Director Weeks, and 
unanimously carried, to approve the payment of bills. 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Board Meeting 2/7/07 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A.   COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
  1. TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
Report on Seaside Basin Groundwater Recommended Approach – Martin Feeney 
Mr. Martin Feeney, Consulting Hydro geologist, reviewed orally the documents submitted to 
Ms. Diana Ingersoll dated January 12, 2007, regarding the recommended approach to the 
groundwater modeling component of the BMMP. Ms. Ingersoll stated that the Watermaster 
Technical Advisory Committee (“TAC”) reviewed the documents and concurred with the 
recommendations made by Mr. Feeney. 
 
The Board discussed with Mr. Feeney the basis of the recommendations including past 
modeling efforts and numerical engine models used. If any groundwater modeling is done, 
Vice Mayor Haferman supported using the simplest approach initially given the uncertainties 
inherent in the development of the model then adding depth to the model as data is 
forthcoming.   
 

Moved by Director Leonard, seconded by Director Costa, and 
unanimously carried, to accept Mr. Feeney’s recommended approach to 
use, with minor refinements, the existing groundwater model (Durbin) to 
serve Watermaster’s immediate needs and meet the requirements of the 
judgment and, after stated refinements are completed by the Court 
deadline of March 27, 2007 at a cost estimate of $50,000, to adopt the 
Durbin model as the “interim groundwater model.” 

 
      2. BUDGET/FINANCE COMMITTEE 
No current report. 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Board Policy on Reimbursements for Consultants  
CEO Evans reviewed orally the submitted memo recommending that the Board adopt a 
policy that allows reimbursement of expenses for consultants, agents or any outside 
persons only upon prior approval by the Board of Directors or their designated 
representative. Mayor Rubio inquired if, for example, all public agencies will be paid to 
furnish data for the BMMP, as was the case with MPWMD. CEO Evans stated that the 
policy was developed for the particular case of the groundwater modeling meeting 
representative reimbursement. Director Leonard requested that the policy be developed to 
encompass any case where money is spent including emergency situations where 
authority is delegated to the CEO. The policy should also address the timing issue: Give 
limited authority to the CEO for situations in which the Board is unable to act 
expeditiously. Director Weeks requested that the words, “designated representative” be 
stricken from the policy. Further, he suggested that the policy at hand not include 
Director Leonard’s requests, nor a dollar limit, but a separate policy be developed for 
approval of expenditures based on parameters recommended by the CEO. 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Board Meeting 2/7/07 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 
Moved by Director Weeks, seconded by Director Leonard, and unanimously 
carried, to adopt a policy that allows reimbursement of expenses for 
consultants, agents or any outside persons for any and all collaborative and 
contractual outside services only upon prior approval by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
B.  Appointment of a Watermaster Treasurer 
 
Moved by Vice Mayor Haferman, seconded by Director Leonard, and 
unanimously carried, to accept Vice Mayor Haferman’s offer to assume the 
position of Watermaster Treasurer. 
 
C.  Annual Report to Court for Year 2006 
CEO Evans reviewed orally the submitted draft Annual Report for Year 2006, developed 
by Attorney Sandra Dunne, to be filed with the Court by February 15, 2007. (In 
subsequent years the report will be filed November 15th.) The Report includes quarterly 
pumping data from parties and producers; data provided by MPWMD was used in lieu of 
data not yet received from certain producers and parties. As additional information, 
Director Costa will provide to Watermanster water use data for the quarter October 
through December 2005 from producers Laguna Seca, Golf Ranch, Bishop, and 
McIntosh. Director Leonard stated that the water use term of calendar year should be 
stated consistently in the Report. Footnotes in the Report should indicate that water usage 
in subsequent years would be based on a water year (October 1 through September 30). 
CEO Evans noted the stated carry-over credits: Cal-Am with 140 acre-feet under-
production from Laguna Seca Subarea, DBO Development 49 acre-feet, and Granite 
Rock 27 acre-feet. Alternative producers are not entitled to carry-over credits or transfers 
of water.  
 
The submitted schedule of administrative costs for 2006 reports an incorrect total of 
$36,651.07 and should be corrected to reflect $41,148.93.  
 
Ms. Dunne explained for the Board the replenishment assessment schedule for Standard 
Producers included in the report. Cal-Am exceeded the Natural Safe Yield as a Standard 
Producer and will be assessed the amount of $2,106,652; the City of Seaside exceeded 
the Natural Safe Yield and will be assessed the amount of $168,668 with an additional 
Operating Yield Over Production Assessment of $50,940. These assessments are based 
on the Court’s most recent order regarding assessment calculations. Production 
information provided by MPWMD was used to obtain the over-production amounts. Per 
the Judgment, Watermaster is to declare at the beginning of the water year whether there 
is replenishment water available so the parties are on notice whether they can or cannot 
pump over the operating yield of the Basin. The Judgment was not filed until March 2006 
and no such declaration was made for the initial year of the Judgment so the parties were 
unaware whether they could or could not pump over the Operating Yield, therefore, it is 
unclear whether the City of Seaside actually violated the Judgment during 2006. Ms. 
Dunne felt it important that the Court be aware that the over production occurred and 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Board Meeting 2/7/07 
Page 4 of 7 
 

why so as not to appear that Watermaster was disregarding the Decision. She suggested 
agendizing the declaration of replenishment availability at the next Regular Board 
Meeting. Generally speaking, the assessments are to be used to purchase replenishment 
water and to support replenishment projects. Director Leonard requested that specific 
goals for assessment expenditures be discussed in the near future. Director Bruno 
inquired if the under production by Alternative Producers could be documented to show 
water saved from pumping. Ms. Dunne will develop a more comprehensive worksheet 
that will include that information. She stated that the under-production by the Alternative 
Producers is part of the Natural Yield that the Standard Producers are entitled to use.  
 
Ms. Dunne recommended that the annual report include the water quality monitoring 
report for 2006 prepared by Mr. Joe Oliver, MPWMD, as an attachment. Attorney Don 
Freeman suggested approving the draft Annual Report with no substantive changes to be 
made in preparation of the final report. If any substantive changes are mad, the report 
would come back before the Board for approval.  
 
Regarding item B of the Report, Mr. Oliver noted that MPWMD, in coordination with 
Cal-Am, did inject and store, under the MPWMD temporary water right, 411 acre-feet 
into the Basin as part of a test program and that the information should be characterized 
in the Report. Director Leonard’s interpretation of the judgment is that Cal-Am and 
MPWMD should have requested storage rights of the injected water in order for it to be 
included in the replenishment calculations. Attorney David Laredo stated there is a 
distinction between groundwater storage for which there is a right to extract and use at a 
later time and just merely reporting the fact of groundwater storage. For this phase of the 
program, it appears that the 411 acre-feet of water injected and stored does not relate to a 
later right to extract. MPWMD in conjunction with Cal-Am is in the process of obtaining 
a water right from the State Water Resources Control Board that would allow water 
brought over from Carmel River to be injected into the Basin to be pumped at a later 
time. Once approved by the State Board, the parties would need to come before the 
Watermaster Board for approval of storage rights and later extraction. Mr. Freeman 
recommended noting in the Report the injection of the 411 acre-feet and including a 
footnote that a possible credit adjustment may need to be determined by the Board at a 
later time. Mr. Laredo and Director Leonard requested documentation of the Aquifer 
Storage and Recovery Program (“ASR”) process for a clear understanding of the 
elements of the process, such as where the water comes from (Carmel River), as a more 
defined project phase and related storage rights progress. Director Leonard requested that 
the CEO rely on Mr. Oliver to develop the ASR process description to communicate to 
the judge that Watermaster is taking action in the ASR field. Mr. Oliver submitted a 
revised table of 2006 groundwater production to be included in the Report showing Sand 
City’s production of .5 acre-feet. 
 
Moved by Director Leonard, seconded by Vice Mayor Haferman, and 
unanimously carried, to approve the Annual Report for Year 2006 under the 
following conditions: The term “calendar year” is to be used for the 
operating production basis; a notation is to be made of the MPWMD/Cal-Am 
411 acre-foot test injection with a footnote indicating that a future 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Board Meeting 2/7/07 
Page 5 of 7 
 

replenishment assessment credit to Cal-Am may be in order; the documented 
ASR process provided by Mr. Joe Oliver is to be included; a notation is to be 
made stating that violation of Over Production is to be addressed by 
Declaration of the 2007 replenishment amount as an agenda item at the next 
Regular Board Meeting; and Board and legal review of the final Report will 
be made prior to submission to the Court by a Watermaster legal 
representative.  
 
D.  Replenishment Assessment Distribution 
Chair Rubio requested that attachments provided in the Board packets have 
associated agenda items indicated at the top. 
 
Moved by Director Bruno, seconded by Director Weeks/Knight, and 
unanimously carried, to authorize the CEO to levy 2006 Replenishment 
Assessments with the assessment amounts being subject to adjustments as 
authorized in the future by the Watermaster Board.  
 
E.  Contract with RBF Consulting for Work Plan Development 
Sarah Hardgrave, RBF, reviewed the RBF memo dated February 2, 2007, 
submitted to Ms. Diana Ingersoll, TAC Chair, regarding the scope of work to 
identify revised BMMP priorities and key tasks, as well as scheduling and 
phasing recommendations considering work scope services awarded to Mr. 
Martin Feeney at the last Regular Board Meeting. Director Costa referred to a 
letter submitted to the Board by Attorney Eric Robinson, Kronick, Moskovitz, 
Tiedemann & Girard, dated February 7, 2007, regarding the re-scoping of the 
BMMP, stating a request by the Laguna Seca Alternative Producers (“LSAP”) 
that any re-scoping of the BMMP retain all tasks concerning the collection and 
analysis of additional groundwater resource data for the Laguna Seca Subarea and 
southern Coastal Subarea. Mayor Russell supported the LSAP request. TAC 
Chair, Diana Ingersoll, stated that, upon award of a contract to RBF as 
recommended by TAC at the last Regular Board Meeting, a TAC subcommittee 
would be established that would work with RBF to re-scope the entire BMMP, 
including the scope of the request made by the LSAP. The TAC subcommittee 
would bring the re-scoped BMMP back to the Watermaster Board prior to the 
hearing scheduled by the Court in mid-March. 
 
Moved by Director Costa, seconded by Director Leonard, and unanimously 
carried, to approve a contract and a budget increase and expenditure of 
approximately $35,000 to retain the firm of RBF Consulting to develop a 
Work Plan for the re-scoping of the BMMP and submit the Work Plan to the 
Watermaster Technical Advisory Committee for presentation to the 
Watermaster Board for approval at the March 7, 2007 Regular Board 
Meeting. 

 
IX. STAFF INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Board Meeting 2/7/07 
Page 6 of 7 
 

A.  Receive Fall 2006 Groundwater Quality Monitoring Report for MPWMD 
Seaside Basin Coastal Monitor Wells 
Mr. Joe Oliver, MPWMD, stated that groundwater quality test data was gathered 
during the District’s routine annual testing. As of last month, the existing coastal 
sentinel wells are now monitored quarterly and a report of that data will be 
available to the Board in the next two months. He stated that there are no signs of 
seawater intrusion from the existing network of wells.  
 
The Board received Mr. Oliver’s memorandum as informational.  
 
B.  Current Fiscal Year Financial Statements 
The Board reviewed the submitted Financial Reports, to be provided to the Board 
on a monthly basis. Director Bruno inquired if assessment revenue would be 
invested once received. CEO Evans stated that currently revenues are placed in 
the City of Seaside Treasury; the Board may request that the money be invested 
and interest prorated to the Watermaster Fund. Director Leonard requested that 
monthly informational reports include timely Judgment items such as 
assessments, reports due, or deadlines approaching. 
 
The Board received the Financial Reports as informational.  

 
X. DIRECTOR’S REPORTS 
Director Bruno stated that he had been appointed to the Community Advisory Committee for 
MPWMD. 
 
Mayor Pendergrass inquired whether the Board of Directors is required to file Form 700. Mr. 
Freeman stated that the Board is not a public agency, but an arm of the Court, and the Judgment 
only refers to the Public Records Act and the Brown Act. The Board does need to establish its 
own Conflict of Interest Code at some point in time however there is nothing reportable at this 
time.  
 
XI. EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMMENTS 
CEO Evans stated that examples of contracts are being used to develop a contract for services 
with Martin Feeney to present to the Board at its next meeting. Chair Rubio requested that the 
elements being considered from sample contracts be made available to the Directors so that the 
Board could determine what type of contract would be appropriate. 
 
CEO Evans will not be attending the March 7, 2007, Watermaster Regular Board Meeting; Laura 
Paxton-Dadiw will be attending to take the minutes, and Board packets will be prepared in 
advance. 
  
The Soper Field facility has been booked by another organization on April 4, 2007, the date of 
the Watermaster Regular Board Meeting. Blackhawk Room at Oldemeyer Center and the 
Seaside City Hall Council Chambers are being considered as alternate locations. Any 
suggestions are welcome. Soper Field is reserved for all other Watermaster Regular Meetings for 
the remainder of 2007. 



Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 
Board Meeting 2/7/07 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Due to the Watermaster administrative workload being greater than originally anticipated, CEO 
Evans requested an increase in administrative support services from Dadiw Associates. A 
periodic newsletter will be sent out by email to the Board and other interested parties on items of 
general interest. A milestone event calendar is being developed to provide deadlines, reports, and 
assessment dates. It will be sent via email. A copy of the contract and the work plan for the CEO 
position will be forward to the Board of Directors. 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Chairman Rubio adjourned the meeting at 3:05 p.m. 

 
 



 
VI. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 



 
 

 
SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN  

WATERMASTER 
 
 

 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Dewey D Evans, CEO 
 
Date:  March 7, 2007 
 
Subject: Payment of February, 2007 Bills 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That the Board of Directors approve the payment of bills as listed on the attached schedule. 
 
Comments: 
 
Contract Compensation—For the period from January 28, 2007 through February 24, 2007 a total of 
96.5 billable hours were recorded working directly on Watermaster related business.  During this period 
there were two Board meetings to prepare for with all the related staff reports, coordination of reports 
from others and meetings to attend.  The major focus of this billing period was the preparation, 
coordination and transmitting of the 2006 Annual Report required by the judgment by February 15th and 
the coordination and execution of the contract for the construction and drilling of the four sentinel wells 
with Mr. Martin Feeney.  Replenishment assessment bills were prepared and mailed out the year 2006.   
 
Reimbursables—Direct expenditures that are being requested to be reimbursed for are: rent of office 
space at 2600 Garden Road, Suite 228 for the month of March, 2007.  Administrative support for the 
recording and transcribing of Board minutes, data entry into QuickBooks, preparation of reports and 
research on various Watermaster matters.  Monthly telephone and internet services for the month, long 
distance telephone calls, purchase of paper and printer ink cartridges and postage for certified mailing 
costs. 
 
Thanks,  Dewey  

 
 

  
 
 
 



 
 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

February, 2007 
 

Request for Payment of Bills 
 

 
 
Request for Payment: 
 
Contract Compensation: 
 Chief Executive Officer—Dewey D Evans 
  96.5 hours—January 28 through February 24, 2007 
   At $75.00 per hour--                $7,237.50
 
 
Reimbursables: 
 Pay to Dewey D Evans for personal expenses paid on behalf of  

Watermaster program: 
 
 Office rental-2600 Garden Road, Suite 228 (March, 2007)      $280.00 
 
 Administrative Support—Preparation of Board meeting minutes, 
  and general administrative support       1,425.00 
 
 Telephone and Internet Services  (Feb. 13 through March 12)       113.36 
 
 Computer paper and ink cartridges           221.32 
 
 Postage  (certified mail )                9.28 
    
 
  Total Reimbursables        $2,048.96 
        



 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN 
WATERMASTER 

 
 

 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Dewey D Evans, CEO 
 
Date:  March 7, 2007 
 
Subject: Current Year Financial Reports 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Review and approve for filing the current year financial reports 
 
Comments: 
 
The attached financial reports show the current financial status of all four separate funds that have been 
established for the SGBW accounts.  A new fund was established this month with the “Replenishment 
Fund”.  Replenishment assessments were mailed and accounts receivable were set up for both California 
American Water and the City of Seaside.  An entry was made to offset the California American Water 
assessment by the $465, 252 credit that is being recommended by a separate item on this agenda.   
 
Thanks,  Dewey  
 
 
 



 10:55 AM
 02/02/07
 Accrual Basis

 Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
 Budget vs. Actual

 Administrative Fund
 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2007)

Balance Through February 28, 2007

Adopted 
Budget Expenses Balance

Assessment
FY 2006 Rollover 58,866.47
Assessment 2007 64,000.00 64,000.00

Total 122,866.47 122,866.47

Total

Expense
Administrative

Computer Maint. & Supplies 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00
Contract Staff 60,000.00 12,937.50 47,062.50
Meetings, Travel & Membership 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00
Mileage Reimbursement 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00
Office Consumables & Other 6,000.00 275.62 5,724.38
Office Equip. Maint. & Rental 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00
Office Rental 3,500.00 560.00 2,940.00
Administrative Support 8,000.00 2,150.00 5,850.00
Legal 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00
Utilities 1,000.00 206.70 793.30

Total Administrative 96,000.00 16,129.82 79,870.18

Total 96,000.00

Total Available 26,866.47
Less Dedicated Reserve 25,000.00

Net Available 1,866.47

 Page 1 of 1



 10:10 AM
 02/02/07
 Accrual Basis

 Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
Budget vs. Actual

Monitoring & Management - Operations Fund
 Fiscal Year January 1 - December 31, 2007

Balance Through February 28, 2007

Adopted 
Budget Encumbrance Expense Balance

Assessment
Monitoring & Mgmt Fund - Ops 400,000.00 400,000.00

Total Assessment 400,000.00 400,000.00

Expense
Monitoring & Management - Ops

Groundwater Modeling
Feeney, Martin B. 14,600.00 0.00 14,755.59 -155.59
GW Modeling Consultants Travel 16,370.00 0.00 14,972.52 1,397.48

Total Groundwater Modeling 30,970.00 0.00 29,728.11 1,241.89

BMMP Implementation Work Plan 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00
(contract awarded to RBF consulting)

GW Resource Database
Annual Maintenance 40 hours/qtr 11,200.00 0.00 0.00 11,200.00
Develop/Populate 200 hrs 14,000.00 0.00 0.00 14,000.00

Total GW Resource Database 25,200.00 0.00 0.00 25,200.00

Monitoring of wells
Coastal well monitoring 48,240.00 7,080.00 (1) 0.00 41,160.00
Inland well monitoring 2,240.00 0.00 2,240.00

Total Monitoring of wells 50,480.00 7,080.00 0.00 50,480.00

Total Monitoring & Management - Ops 106,650.00 42,080.00 29,728.11 34,841.89

Total Expense 141,650.00 42,080.00 29,728.11 69,841.89

Total Assessment Available 258,350.00

Notes: 
(1) Contract awarded to MPWMD to record, monitor, and analyze well water extractions 

for first two quarters (six months) of calendar year 2007.

 Page 1 of 1



 10:38 AM
 02/02/07
 Accrual Basis

 Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
Budget vs. Actual

Monitoring & Management - Capital Fund
 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2007)

Balances Through February 28, 2007

Budget Encumbrance
Income/ 
Expense Balance

Assessment
Monitoring & Mgmt Fund - Capit 1,000,000.00 250,000.00 750,000.00

Total Assessment 1,000,000.00 250,000.00 750,000.00

Expense
Monitoring & Management - Cap

Coastal Wells Dataloggers (22) 44,000.00 0.00 0.00 44,000.00
Inland Wells Dataloggers (2) 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00
Monitor Well Construction (5) 900,000.00 850,000.00 0.00 50,000.00

Total Monitoring & Management - Cap 948,000.00 850,000.00 0.00 98,000.00

Reserve Available 52,000.00
Balance of Assessment after Expenses 98,000.00

Total Assessment Available 150,000.00

 Page 1 of 1



 Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster
Budget vs. Actual

Replenishment Fund
 Fiscal Year (January 1 - December 31, 2007)

Balances Through February 28, 2007

Budget Encumbrance
Income/ 
Expense Balance

Assessment
Replenishment Fund 

California American Water 2,106,000.00 2,106,000.00
(Credit Toward Replenishment Assessment)1

-465,252.00 -465,252.00
Total California American Water Assessment 1,640,748.00 1,640,748.00

City of Seaside
Exceeding Natural Safe Yield considering Alternative 
Producers 169,010.00 169,010.00
Operating Yield Overproduction Replenishment 50,940.00 50,940.00

Total City of Seaside 219,950.00 219,950.00

Total Assessment 1,860,698.00 0.00 0.00 1,860,698.00

Expense
Total Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Assessment Available 1,860,698.00

1 Subject to Board approval at March 7, 2007 Watermaster Board meeting.

 Page 1 of 1



VII. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 



 
VII. A. 1. 

 
TECHNICAL 
COMMITTEE 



 

 

 

 

 

D R A F T  I M P L E M E N T A T I O N  P L A N  

S E A S I D E  B A S I N  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  M A N A G E M E N T  
P R O G R A M  

 

 

 

 

March 1, 2007 

 

Presented to: 

Seaside Basin Watermaster 

Technical Advisory Committee 

 

 

Prepared by: 

RBF Consulting 
3180 Imjin Rd. Ste 110 
Marina, CA 93933 
 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 2     2      03/01/2007 

The purpose of the Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program Implementation Plan is to lie 
out a logical, efficient and cost-effective work plan to meet the requirements of the Seaside Basin 
Adjudication.  This Implementation Plan contains a description of the phases identified for the MMP 
work effort, a detailed scope, budget and schedule of tasks planned for 2007, as well as a summary of 
other projects underway that, in addition to implementation of the MMP, will develop solutions to the 
threat of seawater intrusion and establish a maximum perennial yield for the producers who rely on 
the Seaside Basin for their water supply.   

1.  Background 

The Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program (MMP) was developed by the Seaside 
Basin Technical Advisory Committee and adopted on May 17, 2006, and revised on September 5, 
2006, to comply with the Judgment entered in the Seaside Groundwater Basin Adjudication 
(California American Water v. City of Seaside, Monterey County Superior Court, Case Number 
M66343).  The MMP contains several primary tasks: 1) Basin Monitoring Well Construction 
Program; 2) Comprehensive Basin Production, Water Level and Water Quality Program; 3) Basin 
Management Program; and 4) Seawater Intrusion Program. 

The Watermaster Board authorized a Request for Proposals (RFP) on September 29, 2006.  Three 
teams submitted proposals for the two parts of the RFP, Management of the MMP and 
Implementation of the MMP.  The TAC interviewed each team and recommended to the Board that 
two teams be selected.  The Monterey Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD), in 
conjunction with the Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA), would perform the 
management of the MMP.  The second team, lead by RBF Consulting, was selected to implement the 
MMP.  The Watermaster Board provided direction to the TAC to negotiate with these two teams to 
develop a joint scope and budget at their November and December meetings.   

On January 31, 2007, the Watermaster Board selected Martin Feeney to develop an expedited work 
plan for implementation of the coastal sentinel wells.  This effort is key to the detection of seawater 
intrusion and is the first phase of the monitoring well program identified in the MMP.   Based on 
budgetary constraints, the Watermaster Board directed the TAC to continue to work with the 
MPWMD and RBF teams to determine which additional MMP tasks can be accomplished within the 
established budget. 

This Implementation Plan for the MMP is the outcome of this effort, and has resulted in establishing a 
phased approach to the MMP based on a logical order of tasks as well as funding availability as 
established in the Order.  The first phase tasks will provide the prerequisite data for subsequent 
activities, as well as determining the necessity for them.   

2.  Phase 1 - Management and Monitor ing Program Implementation 

The first phase of the MMP Implementation includes both the Coastal Sentinel Work Plan authorized 
by the Watermaster Board on January 31, 2007, as well as additional tasks in the MMP that have been 
identified as priorities and prerequisite activities to subsequent phases.  A summary of these tasks is 
described below, and a detailed scope of work, budget and schedule is included as Appendix A.  

2.1  Monitor ing Wel l  Program Recommended Modif icat ions 
The Coastal Sentinel Work Plan has been reviewed in combination with the additional MMP Phase 1 
tasks as well as with the Coastal Water Project (CWP) Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 3     3      03/01/2007 

program.  MPWMD, California American Water, and RBF Consulting (with ASR Systems and 
GEOSCIENCE) met with Martin Feeney on February 28, 2007.  As a result of this discussion, it is 
recommended that the Work Plan be modified slightly.  The Work Plan identified four sites with one 
well on each site.  It is recommended that this be modified to three sites, and that the southernmost 
site have two wells, one deep to the Santa Margarita formation and the top of the Monterey formation, 
and one to the Paso Robles formation.  The fourth coastal site identified in the work plan will be held 
in abeyance and will be constructed under the CWP ASR Program in early 2008.  However 
permitting of this site will proceed as authorized. 

The CWP ASR Program plans to construct a monitoring well at an inland site, on Bayonet Drive and 
General Jim Moore Boulevard, and an ASR test well is also planned (see Attachment 3).  A second 
CWP monitoring site will be planned for early 2008, with the most appropriate site yet to be 
determined but planned to be in the vicinity of the Coastal Sentinel Well Work Plan’s fourth site.  The 
key objective in determining the fourth coastal site will be better understanding of the impacts of the 
ASR Phase 1 well and the CWP Phase 2 ASR test well.  It may be determined that a site inland from 
the coast would provide more valuable data.  This can be better determined once the existing 
databases are consolidated and initial data from the new coastal sentinel wells are analyzed. 

2.2  Comprehensive Basin Production, Water  Level and Water Qual ity Monitor ing 
Program 
All tasks described under this portion of the MMP are recommended to be performed at this time, as 
the development of a consolidated database of both existing and new data related to water production, 
water levels and water quality will be critical to the determination of the maximum perennial yield of 
the Basin.  This effort will also provide the data and analysis necessary to identify the need for 
additional monitoring wells as identified in the MMP. 

2.3  Basin Management 
As recommended in Martin Feeney’s December 31, 2006 MMP Groundwater Modeling Component - 
Report on Groundwater Modeling Meeting and Recommended Approach, under Phase 1 it is 
recommended to proceed with documentation of the “Durbin” model, in conjunction with Martin 
Feeney and Derrik Williams of Hydrometrics, the groundwater modeler on the RBF team.  Additional 
modeling is recommended to be deferred to Phase 2 of the MMP Implementation Plan. 

2.4  Seawater Intrusion Contingency Program 
Based on the outcome of the Monitoring Well Program and the Comprehensive Basin Production, 
Water Level and Water Quality Monitoring Program, the Seawater Intrusion Contingency Plan would 
be logically informed by the Phase 1 data collection and analysis efforts.  Therefore, this Plan is not 
anticipated to be required in 2007.  However, in order to work toward that end, it is recommended 
that the  

3. Phase 2 -  Management and Monitoring Program Implementat ion 

Based on the results of the Phase 1 Monitoring Well and the Comprehensive Basin Production, Water 
Level and Water Quality Monitoring Program, specific tasks for Phase 2 will be determined in the 
fourth quart of 2007.  Appendix B identifies the MMP tasks and anticipated budget for tasks that are 
recommended be deferred to Phase 2 or subsequent phases. 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 4     4      03/01/2007 

It is anticipated that the new monitoring well data as well as the consolidated database will provide an 
improved basis for development of a new groundwater model, and that this will be a priority focus for 
Phase 2 MMP Implementation. 

4. Supplemental Supply and Other  Related Projects 

Several project are underway which focus on development of supplemental supplies into the Seaside 
Basin.  These projects are briefly identified here to recognize these efforts as important and 
significant steps towards achieving the goals of the Seaside Basin adjudication, in particular to be 
able to reduce pumping in the basin to achieve the maximum perennial yield (safe yield) in the basin. 

4.1California  Amer ican Water  -  Coastal  Water Project 
California American Water submitted an application for the Coastal Water Project (CWP) to the 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) in July 2005.  At this time, the CPUC is preparing the 
Environmental Impact Report.  The CWP includes an ASR program for storage of excess Carmel 
River winter flows into the Seaside Basin, and is a critical supplemental supply project for meeting 
the requirements of the Seaside Basin Adjudication. 

Appendix C is the Scope of Work for the CWP ASR Program currently underway.  Appendix D is a 
Technical Memorandum that reviews all existing data and studies pertinent to the ASR Program.  
Appendix E is a Technical Memorandum, which describes the site development plan for an ASR test 
well, and a monitoring well at the Bayonet Drive site.  The ASR monitoring well, as identified above 
under the Phase 1 Monitoring Well Program, is recommended to be incorporated into the Seaside 
Basin Monitoring Well Network to provide additional data to the Watermaster. 

4.2Monterey  Peninsula Water  Management District  Phase 1  ASR Project  
The MPWMD is implementing the Phase 1 ASR project at this time.  During 2006, the MPWMD 
prepared its draft and final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and obtained permits for the project.  
Construction of the ASR well was started in early 2007, and the temporary pipeline has already been 
constructed. 

Appendix F is the Executive Summary and Project Description from the EIR and provides additional 
detail on this project. 

4.3California  Amer ican Water  -  Seaside  Basin Adjudication Compliance Project 
As a result of the Seaside Basin Adjudication, California American Water has analyzed capital 
improvement requirements to the Monterey system that are required to support the ASR on an 
expedited schedule.  In addition to MPWMD’s project, California American Water is proceeding with 
construction of a permanent pipeline extension to the ASR south of the temporary pipeline that has 
already been constructed.  The Segunda Pump Station is also planned to be upgraded to support the 
ASR. 

The MPWMD Phase 1 ASR Project includes a number of related actions, including installing a new 
injection/extraction well, ancillary facilities, and a pipeline connecting the well to the existing 
California American Water supply system; and replacing an underground pipeline connecting the 
existing Santa Margarita Test Injection Well to the water supply system with a larger, temporary 
aboveground pipeline.  The ASR Extension Pipeline would link the supply system between the Del 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 5     5      03/01/2007 

Rey Oaks Regulating Station to the existing temporary pipeline, which begins near the intersection of 
Hilby Avenue and Mescal Street and conveys water north to the new injection/extraction wells   

The proposed ASR Extension Pipeline Project consists of the installation and operation of 
approximately 4,670 linear feet (LF) of underground pipeline (4,430 LF of 24-inch pipe, and 240 LF 
of 36-inch pipe).  The pipeline alignment would follow General Jim Moore Boulevard (GJM Blvd.), 
on the former grounds of Fort Ord, in Monterey County, California.  In locations where the roadway 
is being realigned, the pipeline will be constructed within the new alignment.  The pipeline would 
begin at Canyon Del Rey Boulevard (State Route 218), connecting to the California American Water 
Company’s water system upstream of the Del Rey Oaks pressure regulating valve station.  A 24-inch 
pipeline would then extend northward, within the roadway of existing GJM Blvd., for approximately 
1,400 LF.  At this location, the alignment would then follow the proposed realigned GJM Blvd. 
northward approximately 3,030 LF to a point east of the intersection of Hilby Avenue and Mescal 
Street.  From this location, a 36-inch pipeline would be constructed west for approximately 240 LF 
and connect to the existing 36-inch tee near the intersection of Hilby Avenue and Mescal Street. 

 

Appendices 

A. MMP Phase 1 Scope of Work, Budget and Schedule 
B. MMP Phase 2 Scope of Work and Budget  
C. Scope of Work for the CWP ASR Program 
D. CWP ASR Task 1 Technical Memorandum – Existing Data Review 
E. CWP ASR Task 2 Technical Memorandum – Test Well Site Development Plan 
F. MPWMD Phase 1 ASR Environmental Impact Report – Executive Summary and Project 

Description 



Appendix A  

Phase 1 Management and Monitoring Plan 
Scope of  Work, Schedule and Budget 

MANAGEMENT  

M.1 
Program Administration 

 

M. 1. a. 
Program Management Plan 

Preparation of a Project Management Plan to reduce project goals and 
objectives, project description, scope of work, work breakdown structures, 
project organization, roles and responsibilities, contract and construction 
budgets, communications plan, quality plan, document control and data transfer 
plan, project controls, and billing procedures.   

M. 1. b. 
Project Budget and Controls 

Monthly invoicing, maintenance of internal budgets and schedules, 
management of subconsultants 

M. 1. c. 
Assist with Board and TAC 
Agendas 

The MPWMD team will closely coordinate with the RBF team, Watermaster 
staff and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) representatives to ensure that 
needed Board and TAC agendas and report items are provided in a timely 
matter for meeting presentations. 

M. 1. d. 
Preparation and Attendance of 
Meetings 

The Project will require numerous meetings both internally and with outside 
governmental agencies and with the public. Appropriate members of the Team 
will attend the necessary meetings and prepare agendas and meeting minutes 
to facilitate the meetings. Planning and review meetings are assumed with the 
Watermaster’s technical staff and consultants for a budgeted period of 12 
months.  High-level meetings to present updates to the Watermaster Board are 
budgeted for 12 months. At key milestones, additional meetings will be held that 
are focused on technical issues and key findings.  

M. 1. e. 
Prepare Board/ TAC Status 
Updates and Reports 

Provide Watermaster with monthly status reports indicating project progress, 
costs incurred, contract and construction cost trends, and problem identification 
and resolution. We will also provide assistance to the TAC in preparing 
technical summary reports and technical memoranda for the Watermaster 
Board.  

M. 1. f. 
Peer Review of Documents and 
Reports 

Assist TAC and Watermaster with peer reviews of documents and reports 
prepared by various Watermaster entities, as requested.  

M. 1. g. 
QA/QC 

The MPWMD team will provide quality control and assurance for all program 
administration materials generated under the program. 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 7     7      03/01/2007 

Deliverables Project Management Plan 
Monthly Status Reports 
Technical Data as required for Meetings 

  

IMPLEMENTATION  

I. 1. 
Monitor Well Construction 

 

I. 1. a. 
Coordination with Monitor Well 
Implementation Program 

Maintain coordination and consultation with Martin Feeney on development of 
Monitoring Well Construction Program. 

I. 2 
Comprehensive Basin 
Production, Water Level and 
Water Quality Monitoring 
Program 

Consolidated Basic Groundwater Resources Database 
Groundwater resource monitoring within the Seaside Basin is currently being 
conducted by numerous entities. The programs consist of: 
Groundwater Production Monitoring; 
Groundwater Level Monitoring; 
Groundwater Quality Monitoring; 
Surface Water Monitoring; and 
Precipitation Monitoring;  

For successful implementation of the Seaside Basin Monitoring Program, 
pertinent historical basic groundwater resource data obtained from the 
abovementioned programs needs to be consolidated into a database to allow 
more efficient organization and data retrieval. The consolidated database will 
allow for simple identification of differences and discrepancies of datasets 
compiled by the numerous entities. Data gaps will become evident as well.  In 
addition, the consolidated database needs to allow pertinent groundwater data 
to be efficiently organized, managed and housed in a single location to 
facilitate:  
Ongoing data collection; 
Data storage and retrieval; 
Distribution of basic data to Watermaster members and interested 

parties; and,  
Preparation of annual and periodic reports to the Watermaster. 
 

Characteristics of both existing wells and wells proposed as part of the 
Seaside Basin Monitoring Program will be notated in the database, 
including type, location, construction details and other pertinent 
information. We understand that the MPWMD already maintains a 
groundwater database that contains some of the features described 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 8     8      03/01/2007 

above. It is our understanding that the Watermaster will determine if the 
MPWMD database should be expanded or if a new database should be 
created. We offer to assist the Watermaster in the review of the existing 
MPWMD groundwater database to help determine whether it is feasible 
and economical to incorporate both the historical data and the ongoing 
data to be collected as part of the Seaside Basin Monitoring Program.   
Coordination with the Watermaster is required in order to verify the adequacy of 
the existing database and ensure our data requirements are met. . Completion 
of the enhancement or development of a consolidated database will allow the 
review the available groundwater resource data to determine discrepancies, 
differences, or data gaps.  

 Monitoring of Production Wells 
As defined in Section D-5, Monitoring of Production Wells, of the RFP, the data 
to be collected by each owner and/or operator of inactive and active wells in the 
Basin shall be forwarded to the Watermaster for inclusion into the consolidated 
database. 

I. 2. a. 
Basin Management Database 
Development 

 

I. 2. a. 1. 
Coordination with Watermaster 
to Review Database 

 

I. 2. a. 1. 1 
Review of MPWMD Database 
to Catalog Historical Data 

Coordination with Watermaster to review adequacy of existing MPWMD 
database to consolidate, organize and manage historical groundwater resource 
data and existing well characteristics. Identify whether the existing database is 
sufficient to catalog the data to be reviewed as part of this Scope of Work. After 
review, additional Scope will be identified. 

I. 2. a. 1. 2 
Review of MPWMD Database 
to Catalog Ongoing Data 
Collection 

Coordinate with Watermaster to review adequacy of MPWMD database to 
organize and manage ongoing groundwater data collection efforts and 
proposed well characteristics, as identified for Tasks 1 and 2. Identify whether 
the existing database if sufficient to catalog the ongoing data collection efforts 
and to archive proposed well characteristics. After review, additional Scope will 
be identified. 

I. 2. a. 2. 
Develop Scope of Work to 
Enhance or Develop New 
Groundwater Resource 
Database 

Upon the Watermaster’s review of the existing groundwater resource database, 
we will draft and submit a Scope to either enhance the existing database, or 
develop a new consolidated database. 

I. 2. a. 3.  
Create Basin Management 

Under general direction and guidance from the MPWMD team, the Watermaster 
database will be formatted and generated to complement the features of the 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 9     9      03/01/2007 

Database MPWMD’s existing water resources database. 

I. 2. a. 4.  
Populate Database with Data 
from all sources 

Under general direction and guidance from the MPWMD team, the Watermaster 
database will be populated with the existing data from all available sources, 
including the MPWWD’s existing database, and all applicable data from 
Watermaster pumper entities, as well as other data available from 
miscellaneous sources. 

I. 2. a. 5. 
Conduct ongoing data entry/ 
database maintenance 

Under general direction and guidance from the MPWMD team, all newly-
acquired data will be added to the Watermaster database as it becomes 
available, and any appropriate database structure modifications will be made as 
needed. 

I. 2. b.  
Data Exchange and Collection   

Incorporate ongoing groundwater monitoring data into the consolidated 
groundwater resource database.  This will include the following subtasks: 

I. 2. b. 1. 
Establish Agreements and 
Schedule 

The MPWMD and RBF teams will closely coordinate to establish agreements 
and schedules for ensuring that all materials for Watermaster database 
development and ongoing maintenance are provided in an organized and timely 
manner for use by the Watermaster. 

I. 2. b. 2. 
Establish Data Types, Formats 

The MPWMD and RBF teams will closely coordinate to establish mutually 
acceptable data types and formats, which will provide the optimal benefit to the 
Watermaster for its recordkeeping and reporting purposes. 

I. 2. c.  
Develop Data Archiving 
Procedures   

Identify procedures for archiving collected field and electronic data. 

I. 2. d.  
Develop Data QA/QC 
Procedures   

Identify procedures for routine Quality Assurance/Quality Control of data 
collection program. 

I. 2. g. 
Enhanced Monitoring Well 
Network Evaluation 

Evaluate existing inactive production wells for possible inclusion with the 
existing and new monitoring well network.  This will include the following 
subtasks: 

I. 2. g. 2 
Key Laguna Seca Subbasin 
Locations 

Existing and potential new monitor well locations at identified key locations 
within and near the Laguna Seca Subarea of the basin will be evaluated 
through consultation with the MPWMD team, report and file research, contacts 
with existing Watermaster member entities, and field inspections. 

I. 2. g. 3 
Key Southern Coastal Subbasin 
Locations 

Existing and potential new monitor well locations at identified key locations 
within and near the Southern Coastal Subarea of the basin will be evaluated 
through consultation with the MPWMD team, report and file research, contacts 
with existing Watermaster member entities, and field inspections. 

I. 2. g. 4 Upon completion of the research and evaluation efforts, a summary technical 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 10     10      03/01/2007 

Summary Technical 
Memorandum with 
Recommendations 

memorandum with recommendations will be prepared and distributed for review 
and input by all Watermaster member entities. 

I. 2. h. 
Laguna Seca Water Quality 
Investigation 

As an additional component to the enhanced monitor well network evaluation, 
all available historical groundwater quality data sources in and near the Laguna 
Seca Subarea will be located in coordination with the MPWMD team, in order to 
evaluate and provide recommendations on enhancement of water quality 
monitoring that will facilitate future updated groundwater resources assessment 
of the Laguna Seca Subarea. 

I. 3 
Basin Management 

 

I. 3. a. 
Supplemental Water Supplies 

Brief review of supplemental water supplies will be conducted as warranted 
throughout the initial phase of the program. The effort devoted to this task is 
anticipated to increase once the consolidated database is developed and 
existing data is analyzed.  

I. 4 
Seawater Intrusion 
Contingency Plan 

Thorough, systematic, and appropriate analyses of groundwater data will allow 
us to identify, track, and mitigate seawater intrusion in the Basin.  Seawater 
intrusion is a slow process, which can be impacted by ground water pumping 
that impacts ground water levels, and, in turn, affects ground water quality 
general mineral concentrations.   Analyses that help identify seawater intrusion 
include:  graphs of ground water levels, pumping and water quality trends; and 
maps representing these data using differentiated symbology.  The final step is 
to evaluate the relationship that the pumping and water levels have on water 
quality.   
Time series of chloride concentrations.  Chloride concentrations are 

the most dependable and recognizable indicator of seawater intrusion.  
Time series graphs from a single well can show steady increases in 
chloride concentration that indicate seawater intrusion.  Unfortunately, 
by the time a definitive chloride trend is established, wells may be too 
impacted by seawater to produce potable water. 

Time series of ionic ratios.  Typically, the molar ratio of sodium to 
chloride will often drop to near or below 0.85 in front of an advancing 
seawater wedge.  Similarly, the molar ratio of calcium to sodium will rise 
in front of an advancing seawater wedge.  These trends are due to the 
ionic exchange of sodium and calcium. 

Trilinear plots.  Plotting major anions and cations on trilinear plots can 
show if water quality data from a single well is migrating towards 
seawater quality.  Water quality plotted on does not migrate along a 
simple mixing line on trilinear plots if intrusion is due to an advancing 
seawater front.  Data from Salinas Valley, however, suggests that water 
quality often does plot along a simple mixing line if intrusion is due to 
flow through abandoned or non-operating wells.  This can help identify 
the intrusion mechanism in various places. 

Time series of Stiff diagrams.  Plotting major anions and cations on 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 11     11      03/01/2007 

stiff diagrams allows qualitative indication of seawater intrusion.  Stiff 
diagrams are identified by their general shapes, each water type having 
a unique shape. A change in the shape of stiff diagrams may indicate 
seawater intrusion.  

Time series of Chloride concentration maps.  Maps of chloride 
concentrations show the movement of a seawater intrusion front into a 
basin.  Individual maps must be produced for each aquifer.  Of 
importance is that all maps be developed with a consistent approach, 
ensuring that changes in the maps represent changes in data, not 
changes in contouring algorithms.  The RFP suggested an approach to 
producing chloride concentration maps with ESRI products. 

For purposes of the Seawater Intrusion Contingency Program, until additional 
empirical data are developed and analyzed, the Seaside groundwater basin 
aquifers will be defined as seawater intruded when the chloride concentration in 
a coastal monitor well reaches approximately 100 mg/l and 250 mg/l for the 
Paso Robles and Santa Margarita aquifers, respectively. For a coastal 
production well, the standard will be 250 mg/l, given that some wells contain 
multiple aquifer formations that reflects a blend of these sources. These 
standards will be utilized until more comprehensive standards based on 
historical water quality data at individual monitor and production wells can be 
developed. The Watermaster will institute interim standards for notice of 
potential seawater intrusion so that appropriate preventive actions may be 
taken. Interim notice will be defined as 50 percent increase above ambient 
chloride concentrations for any specific monitoring well location. 
In addition to establishing baseline chloride concentrations and monitoring 
chloride concentrations, other complimentary water quality parameters will be 
established and monitored to provide supplemental data for water quality trend 
analysis and characterization. It will be important to coordinate with the 
Watermaster and the manager of the Seaside Basin Groundwater Resource 
Database in order to ensure that the appropriate water quality parameters are 
established to serve the purpose of the Seawater Intrusion Contingency 
Program.  In addition, data formats and data transfer procedures will need to be 
coordinated with the Watermaster and resource database manager. 

I. 4. a. 
Oversight of Seawater Intrusion 
Detection and Tracking 

MCWRA will provide general oversight over the Seawater Intrusion detection 
program.  

I. 4. b. 
Develop Seawater Intrusion 
Analysis Protocol 

The RBF team will coordinate with MCWRA to adapt the existing seawater 
intrusion analysis protocol utilized in the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin for 
use in the Seaside Groundwater Basin. 

I. 4. c. 
Prepare Baseline Water Level 
Contour Mapping 

Under general direction and guidance from MCWRA, up-to-date baseline water 
level contour mapping will be prepared utilizing all available water level data 
from existing production and monitor wells, and proposed new dedicated 
coastal sentinel monitor wells. 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 12     12      03/01/2007 

I. 4. d. 
Prepare Mapped Representation 
of Baseline Basin Pumping 

Under general direction and guidance from MCWRA, mapped representation of 
recent (i.e., baseline) groundwater production will be prepared utilizing 
symbology adapted from the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin. 

I. 4. e. 
Graph and Map Historical 
Data/Establish Baseline Water 
Quality 

Analyzing historical water quality data serves two purposes: 1) It establishes 
baseline water quality; and 2) It identifies historical water quality trends.  We will 
rely on wells that are completed over short lengths, and in discrete aquifers to 
determine background water quality for various aquifers; wells completed over 
many aquifers may show a hybrid water quality signature.  As discussed in the 
approach section, water quality trends are often difficult to discern with only on 
type of analysis, so we will use many approaches to identify water quality 
trends.  We will produce chloride time series graphs, ionic ratio time series 
graphs, stiff diagrams, trilinear plots (with standard seawater identified), and 
chloride contour maps for the time periods identified in Task 5.2. Arcview GIS 
3.3 will be utilized to generate chloride contour maps per the procedures 
outlined in the RFP. A preliminary analysis of the graphs and maps will be 
conducted to establish baseline water quality and identify trends.  In particular, 
we will compare water quality trends with water levels, pumping data, and 
recharge data to interpret both the aerial and vertical distribution of seawater 
intrusion.  The graphs, maps, and analyses will be submitted for review by the 
entire Watermaster Board.  Modifications to these graphs and maps will be 
incorporated based on input from Board members. 

I. 4. f. 
Analyze and Map Water Quality 
from Coastal Monitoring Wells 

Immediately after the coastal monitoring wells are installed and sampled, we 
will update our data analyses with the data from these wells.  New chloride 
concentration maps will be produced incorporating the data from the coastal 
wells.  Because these new maps are the first maps with all data points included, 
they will serve as the baseline for future comparison.  Insufficient water quality 
data from the new coastal wells precludes developing time series graphs, 
however the water quality data will be compared to water quality from similar, 
nearby wells to identify potential seawater intrusion.   

I. 4. g. 
Annual Report- Seawater 
Intrusion Analysis 

At the end of each water year, all water quality data will be re-analyzed.  Semi-
annual chloride concentration maps will be produced for each aquifer in the 
basin.  Time series graphs, trilinear graphs, and stiff diagram comparisons will 
be updated with new data.  The annual EM logs will be analyzed to identify 
changes in seawater wedge locations.  All analyses will be incorporated into an 
annual report that follows the format of the initial, historical data report.  
Potential seawater intrusion will be highlighted in the report, and if necessary, 
recommendations will be included.  The annual report will be submitted for 
review to the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and then to the entire 
Watermaster Board.  Modifications to the report will be incorporated based on 
input, first from the TAC, then from Board members. 
After the first annual report, analysis and reporting can be transferred to 
Watermaster Board or be extended, depending on the needs of the 
Watermaster Board and subject to additional contract negotiations. 

 



Activity ID Activity Name OD RD Start Finish

Monitoring and Management ProgramMonitoring and Management Program 303 282 Jan-15-07 A Mar-28-08

Program AdministrationProgram Administration 32 32 Jan-15-07 A Apr-16-07

WM000210 Develop Implementation Plan 1 9 Jan-15-07 A Mar-13-07
WM000230 Watermaster Board and Judge Review of Implementation Plan 23 23 Mar-14-07* Apr-13-07
WM000240 Initiate Implementation Plan 0 0 Apr-16-07 Apr-16-07

Monitor Well ConstructionMonitor Well Construction 218 197 Jan-31-07 A Nov-30-07

PermittingPermitting 51 30 Jan-31-07 A Apr-11-07
P1000040 CEQA Notice of Exemption 35 10 Jan-31-07 A Mar-14-07
P1000050 California Coastal Commission 35 10 Jan-31-07 A Mar-14-07
P1000030 State Parks ROE Permit 20 20 Mar-15-07 Apr-11-07
P1000140 MoCo Env Health- Well Construction Permit 15 15 Mar-15-07 Apr-04-07

ConstructionConstruction 187 187 Mar-15-07 Nov-30-07
WM000250 Procure/ Mobilize Sentinel Monitor Well Contractor 20 20 Mar-15-07 Apr-11-07
WM000220 Sentinel Monitor Well Construction 30 30 Apr-12-07 May-23-07
WM000221 Sentinel Monitoring Well Development 20 20 May-24-07 Jun-20-07
WM000222 ASR MW Construction (by CWP) 45 45 Oct-01-07* Nov-30-07

Production, Water Level and Water Quality MonitoringProduction, Water Level and Water Quality Monitoring 140 140 Apr-16-07 Oct-26-07

Basin Managment Database DevelopmentBasin Managment Database Development 120 120 Apr-16-07 Sep-28-07
WM000010 Review Existing MPWMD Database 20 20 Apr-16-07 May-11-07
WM000030 Develop Scope to Enhance or Create New Database 10 10 May-28-07 Jun-08-07
WM000040 Create Basin Management Database 40 40 Jun-11-07 Aug-03-07
WM000050 Populate Database from All Data Sources 40 40 Aug-06-07 Sep-28-07

Data Exchange and CollectionData Exchange and Collection 10 10 May-14-07 May-25-07
WM000070 Establish Data Exhange and Collection Protocol 10 10 May-14-07 May-25-07
WM000090 Develop Data Archiving Procedures 10 10 May-14-07 May-25-07
WM000100 Develop Data QA/QC Procedures 10 10 May-14-07 May-25-07

Enhanced Monitor Network EvaluationEnhanced Monitor Network Evaluation 20 20 Oct-01-07 Oct-26-07
WM000130 Review Laguna Seca and S-Coastal Monitor Wells 20 20 Oct-01-07 Oct-26-07
WM000140 Laguna Seca WQ Investigation 20 20 Oct-01-07 Oct-26-07

Basin Management ProgramBasin Management Program 150 150 Apr-02-07 Oct-26-07

WM000340 Durbin Model Documentation 25 25 Apr-02-07* May-04-07
WM000150 Initial Review of Supplemental Water Supplies 20 20 Oct-01-07 Oct-26-07

Seawater Intrusion Detection ProgramSeawater Intrusion Detection Program 130 130 Oct-01-07 Mar-28-08

WM000170 Develop Seawater Intrusion Analysis Protocol 10 10 Oct-01-07 Oct-12-07
WM000180 Prepare Baseline Water Level Contour Mapping 80 80 Oct-15-07 Feb-01-08
WM000260 Analyze and Map Water Quality from New Sentinel Wells 80 80 Oct-15-07 Feb-01-08
WM000190 Prepare Mapping of Baseline Basin Pumping 80 80 Nov-12-07 Feb-29-08
WM000200 Graph & Map Historic Data/ Establish Baseline WQ 80 80 Dec-10-07 Mar-28-08

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
2007 2008

Mar-28-08, Monitoring and Management Program

Apr-16-07, Program Administration

Develop Implementation Plan
Watermaster Board and Judge Review of Implementation Plan
Initiate Implementation Plan

Nov-30-07, Monitor Well Construction

Apr-11-07, Permitting
CEQA Notice of Exemption
California Coastal Commission

State Parks ROE Permit
MoCo Env Health- Well Construction Permit

Nov-30-07, Construction
Procure/ Mobilize Sentinel Monitor Well Contractor

Sentinel Monitor Well Construction
Sentinel Monitoring Well Development

ASR MW Construction (by CWP)
Oct-26-07, Production, Water Level and Water Quality Monitoring

Sep-28-07, Basin Managment Database Development
Review Existing MPWMD Database

Develop Scope to Enhance or Create New Database
Create Basin Management Database

Populate Database from All Data Sources
May-25-07, Data Exchange and Collection
Establish Data Exhange and Collection Protocol
Develop Data Archiving Procedures
Develop Data QA/QC Procedures

Oct-26-07, Enhanced Monitor Network Evaluation
Review Laguna Seca and S-Coastal Monitor Wells
Laguna Seca WQ Investigation
Oct-26-07, Basin Management Program

Durbin Model Documentation
Initial Review of Supplemental Water Supplies

Mar-28-08, Seawater Intrusion Detection Program

Develop Seawater Intrusion Analysis Protocol
Prepare Baseline Water Level Contour Mapping
Analyze and Map Water Quality from New Sentinel Wells

Prepare Mapping of Baseline Basin Pumping
Graph & Map Historic Data/ Establish Baseline WQ

Mar-01-07                              Page 1 of 1

Data Date: Mar-01-07 

(c)PrimaveraSystems, Inc.    

 

Seaside Basin Monitoring &

Management Program

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary



DRAFT

Item Cost Description MPWMD RBF Total

Labor Costs*   
M.1 Program Administration 27,720$                     80,900$                     $108,620
I.1 Monitor Well Construction 9,504$                       14,471$                     $23,975
I.2 Production, Water Level and Quality Monitoring 21,280$                     144,600$                   $165,880
I.3 Basin Management 3,280$                       6,300$                       $9,580
I.4 Seawater Intrusion Contingency Plan 23,712$                     88,800$                     $112,512

 Subtotal 85,496$                    335,071$                  $420,567
Direct Costs

Durbin Model Documentation $40,000
Database Server Purchase $4,200
Data Archiving Software Purchase $3,600
Reproduction, Mileage and Miscellaneous $15,000

Subtotal $62,800

TOTAL $483,367

March 1, 2007

Phase 1                                                                                                                                                                                   
Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program                                                                                           

ESTIMATED BUDGET SUMMARY
MPWMD/ MCWRA and RBF Team Costs



DRAFT 

Project 
Manager   

Project 
Engineer   Designer    Eng 7  Eng 6    HG 5   HG 4            HG 3             CAD           Tech

Office 
Support HG Staff

 Hours Rate Subtotal $220 $160 $120 $187 $181 $155 $143 $114 $70 $58 $58 $141 $110

M. 1 Program Administration 
M. 1. a. Program Management Plan 24 99$           2,376$     -$              -$                 2,376$          
M. 1. b. Project Budgets and Controls 48 99$           4,752$     24 64 15,500$    15,500$        20,252$        
M. 1. c. Assist with Board and TAC Agendas 48 99$           4,752$     -$              -$                 4,752$          
M. 1. d. Preparation and Attendance of Meetings 60 99$           5,940$     40 64 80 28,700$    28,700$        34,640$        
M. 1. e. Prepare Board/ TAC Status Updates and Reports 12 99$           1,188$     40 64 80 28,700$    28,700$        29,888$        
M. 1. f. Peer Review of Documents and Reports 72 99$           7,128$     16 28 8,000$      8,000$          15,128$        
M. 1. g. QA/QC 16 99$           1,584$     -$              -$                 1,584$          

 27,720$   80,900$   -$             80,900$       108,620$     

I. 1. Monitor Well Construction 
I. 1. a. Coordination with Monitor Well Implementation Program 96 99$           9,504$     16 24 7,360$      16 16 8 $7,111 14,471$        23,975$        

9,504$     7,360$     $7,111 14,471$       23,975$       

I. 2. Production, Water Level and Quality Monitoring 
I. 2. a. Basin Management Database Development  -$              -$                 
I. 2. a. 1. Coordination with Watermaster to Review Database 16 99$           1,584$     30 64 96 28,400$    28,400$        29,984$        
I. 2. a. 1. 1 Review of MPWMD Database to Catalog Historical Data -$             -$              -$                 
I. 2. a. 1. 2 Review of MPWMD Database to Catalog Ongoing Data Collection -$             -$              -$                 
I. 2. a. 2. Develop Scope to Enhance or Develop New Database -$             8 20 5,000$      5,000$          5,000$          
I. 2. a. 3.  Create Basin Management Database 40 67$           2,680$     40 120 20,800$    20,800$        23,480$        
I. 2. a. 4.  Populate Database with Data from all sources -$             40 120 20,800$    20,800$        20,800$        
I. 2. a. 5.  Conduct ongoing data entry/ database maintanance 32 69$           2,208$     12 72 10,600$    10,600$        12,808$        
I. 2. b. Data Exchange and Collection  -$              -$                  
I. 2. b. 1. Establish Agreements and Schedule 12 94$           1,128$     8 36 7,500$      7,500$          8,628$          
I. 2. b. 2. Establish Data Types, Formats 60 94$           5,640$     8 36 7,500$      7,500$          13,140$        
I. 2. c.  Develop Data Archiving Procedures 60 94$           5,640$     8 48 9,400$      9,400$          15,040$        
I. 2. d. Develop Data QA/QC Procedures 24 67$           1,608$     8 64 12,000$    12,000$        13,608$        
I. 2. e.  Enhanced Monitor Network Evaluation 8 99$           792$        -$              -$                 792$             
I. 2. e. 1. Key Laguna Seca Subbasin Locations -$             -$              4 4 8 16 $5,000 5,000$          5,000$          
I. 2. e. 2. Key S-Coastal Subbasin Locations -$             -$              4 4 8 16 $5,000 5,000$          5,000$          
I. 2. e. 3. Summary Technical Memorandum with Recommendations -$             -$              4 4 12 16 4 10 $6,400 6,400$          6,400$          
I. 2. f. Laguna Seca Water Quality Investigation -$             -$              8 4 8 12 8 10 $6,200 6,200$          6,200$          

21,280$   122,000$ 22,600$   144,600$     165,880$     
I. 3 Basin Management
I. 3. a. Supplemental Water Supplies 40 82$           3,280$     4 16 24 6,300$      6,300$          9,580$          

3,280$     6,300$     -$             6,300$         9,580$         

I. 4. Seawater Intrusion Contingency Plan   
I. 4. a. Oversight of Seawater Intrusion Detection and Tracking 32 114$         3,648$     -$              -$                 3,648$          
I. 4. b. Develop Seawater Intrusion Analysis Protocol 32  $         114 3,648$     -$              40 12 $7,000 7,000$          10,648$        
I. 4. c. Prepare Baseline Water Level Contour Mapping 16 114$         1,824$     4 12 20 5,200$      24 48 $8,700 13,900$        15,724$        
I. 4. d. Prepare Mapped Representation of Baseline Basin Pumping 16 114$         1,824$     4 12 20 5,200$      24 48 $8,700 13,900$        15,724$        
I. 4. e. Graph and Map Historical Data/Establish Baseline Water Quality 32 114$         3,648$     4 12 40 7,600$      32 64 $11,600 19,200$        22,848$        
I. 4. f. Analyze and Map Water Quality from Coastal Monitoring Wells 16 114$         1,824$     4 12 40 7,600$      16 32 $5,800 $13,400 15,224$        
I. 4. g. Annual Report- Seawater Intrusion Analysis 64 114$         7,296$     4 20 24 7,000$      40 80 $14,400 21,400$        28,696$        

23,712$   32,600$    $56,200 88,800$       112,512$     
85,496$   249,160$ $29,711 $56,200 335,071$     420,567$     

 
Notes: x-  indicates work performed by

M- indicates Management
I- indicates Implementation

Subtotal 
per Task 

Labor BudgetTask Description 
HydrometricsRBF ASR Systems/ Pueblo Water Resources

Task No. 

Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program 
Proposed Scope and Labor Budget

RBF Team 
Subtotal Task Total

Subtotal 
per Task 

Subtotal per 
Task

MPWMD/ MCWRA

03/01/2007  H:\Pdata\70100076\Admin\contract\Watermaster_Proposed_Budget_030107.xls 2



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 13     13      03/01/2007 

Appendix B 

Phase 2 Management and Monitoring Plan 

Scope of  Work, Schedule and Budget 

 

 

To be inserted on 3/5/07 

 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 14     14      03/01/2007 

Appendix C 

Scope of  Work for the CWP ASR Program 

The scope is organized into six primary tasks: 

Task 1. Existing Data Review 

Task 2. Installing an ASR Test Well and Monitoring Wells 

Task 3. Installing ASR Wells 

Task 4. Equipping ASR Wells 

Task 5. Project Management and Agency Coordination 

Task 6. Optional Task, CVSIM hydrologic modeling 

Each of these tasks and their associated subtasks is discussed in detail below.  A summary of 
deliverables and a project schedule, showing the duration of each task, is presented in Section 3 – 
Deliverables and Schedule.   

Task 1. Existing Data Review 

Considerable data and analyses have been produced since the CWP PEA was submitted to the CPUC.  
We will review recently developed data for consistency with the current conceptual model presented 
in the PEA, and review recent models and water budget analyses.  Additionally, we will incorporate 
new data developed during the current study into our conceptual model of the basin.  With this new 
information, we will determine if the existing basin conceptual model properly depicts the behavior of 
the basin.    Any significant deviations should be investigated and added to the goals of the test and 
monitoring well program.   Locations for the test and monitoring wells will be recommended with 
supporting documentation.    

Task 1.1 Compilation and Review of Existing Data:  The ASR Systems Team was instrumental in 
producing the PEA, and is already familiar with the data supporting the PEA.  Recent groundwater 
level data, groundwater production and specific capacity data, recharge injection flow and level data, 
and water quality data will be compiled and reviewed and compared to the data in the PEA.  Water 
level trends in response to recharge operations at the Santa Margarita Injection Test Well will be 
evaluated.  In particular, we will review recent well and aquifer hydraulic data developed from the 
MPWMD’s Santa Margarita Injection Test Well (SMITW).   

Task 1.2 Hydrologic Model Comparison:  The conceptual model used in the PEA will be compared 
to the historic hydraulic modeling efforts to identify any significant deviations from the expected 
hydraulic response.  We will review both historic modeling efforts as well as analyses produced for 
the recent adjudication.  Reports prepared for the adjudication include the water budget report by 
Yates (2005), and the groundwater model presented by Durbin (2005).  These will be compared to the 
previous water budget prepared by CH2M Hill, and the groundwater model prepared by CDM, as 
well as the analytical model results included in the PEA and Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District’s (MPWMD) Phase 1 ASR Project EIR/EA.  If significant discrepancies between the current 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 15     15      03/01/2007 

conceptual model and the previous studies are discovered, then data gaps will be identified and a data 
collection program will be recommended to achieve an adequate understanding of the basin’s 
hydraulic response to ASR.   

Task 1.3 Site Investigation and Recommendations:  After substantiating our conceptual model of 
the Seaside basin, the ASR Systems Team will reevaluate the storage volume potentially available for 
ASR operations within the Seaside Basin and will confirm the viability of ASR technology to store 
and recover adequate amounts of water.  The team will evaluate the best possible locations for the test 
and monitoring wells to support the ASR testing program and long-term operation.  With recent 
roadway widening along the west side of General Jim Moore Boulevard, the construction easements 
for well sites identified in the PEA have been reduced.   Creative site management and agency 
coordination will be necessary to construct the facilities within the narrow easements that will be 
available within the wellfield alignment.  

Task 1 will be conducted jointly by ASR Systems and Padre Associates during the first three months, 
as shown in Table 3 and also on the Project Schedule presented on p. 14 of the Technical Proposal.  
Total budget is shown in Table 2 at the end of this revised Scope of Work. 

Deliverable: Technical Memorandum for Tasks 1.1 to 1.3 

Schedule: Completion by Month 3 

Task 2. Install an ASR Test Well and Monitoring Wells 

The test well program has a number of goals including: 

Defining the lateral extent of the Santa Margarita Sandstone to the north of the existing SMITW;  

Defining the thickness of the Santa Margarita formation;  

Substantiating the hydraulic response of the formation to recharge throughout the proposed 
wellfield area.   

Additional analyses of borehole cores and laboratory water testing will be employed to evaluate the 
chemical compatibility of recharge.  This test program should provide the data to re-evaluate the 
viability of recharge in the Seaside Basin, and if supportive, define the most suitable location and 
spacing for the planned ASR wellfield within the right-of-way identified in the PEA.   

Task 2.1 Design Wells and Produce Well Construction Contract:  The ASR Systems Team will 
assemble the technical specifications and drawings for inclusion into two CAW contract documents, 
one for coring and one for well construction. The well construction technical specifications will cover 
both the ASR Test Well and the monitoring wells. The technical specifications are intended to 
provide adequate detail for bidding and well construction by competent, licensed (C-57) well drilling 
contractors and coring contractors, prequalified by the ASR Systems Team.  The contract documents 
will place special emphasis on timely initiation and completion of the work. The specifications will 
require the use of two different drilling rig systems.  One rig will be used to provide core samples.  A 
second rig will work simultaneously, installing the larger diameter test well and the 6” monitor wells.  
All three wells must be completed prior to performing aquifer tests.  The wells will be constructed in 
accordance with the PEA conceptual design.   



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 16     16      03/01/2007 

The test well will be designed with sufficient diameter so that at a later date it may be permitted and 
equipped for ASR permanent operations.  The ASR Systems team will assist CAW to obtain 
authorization from the City of Seaside to construct and test these wells.  Well design and construction 
will be conducted on a fast-track basis. 

Task 2.2 Agency Support:  The ASR Systems Team will support CAW and the contract bidding 
process by obtaining competitive bids from up to three prequalified well drilling and coring 
contractors, providing a proposed engineers estimate, attending bid related meetings, and preparing 
any necessary addenda.  We will assist in selection of the qualified well drilling and coring 
contractor(s), considering cost and ability to meet the CAW schedule.  The team will be available to 
answer questions related to the technical components of the proposed work, assist to identify permits 
required, and assist the CAW in obtaining the permits for construction of the test and monitoring well 
facilities.  In particular, we will work with CAW to obtain the necessary discharge permits from the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board.  Obtaining well drilling permits  from the Monterey County  
Health Department will be included in the technical specifications discussed above.  The selected 
contractors will work under an agreement directly with CAW. 

 Upon CAW securing well site property and access, the team land surveyor will mark the permanent 
and temporary easements for construction.   

Task 2.3 Install Monitoring Wells:  The ASR Systems Team will coordinate the field activities of 
well construction with local agencies, entities, and residents, and ensure the contractor is meeting 
their obligation to protect the public.  The team will observe the day-to-day activities of the contractor 
and provide resident geologic observation at appropriate times.  The team will ensure the timely and 
accurate collection of core and water quality samples to complement laboratory testing, health district 
and NPDES permitting.   

Geophysical logs and continuous wire-line cores will be obtained from confining layers and intervals 
tentatively selected for ASR storage, including the Paso Robles Formation and Santa Margarita 
Formation, in one of the monitoring wells only.  Further discussion with CAW of the advantages and 
disadvantages of obtaining and analyzing cores is planned since they represent a significant project 
cost.  Current data from the SMITW suggests that the Santa Margarita Formation is geochemically 
inert to treated drinking water obtained from the Carmel River wells.  Selected core samples will be 
analyzed for mineralogical content and reactivity to the proposed recharge water sources and storage 
zone ambient groundwater.  Full time resident observation will be provided during coring operations.   

Task 2.4 Install Test Well:  Rigorous adherence to the well drilling specifications will be critical to 
successfully completing a highly efficient well.  Drilling of the test well will require specialized 
drilling programs to provide a high efficiency recharge well for accurate testing.  This will include the 
use of flooded reverse circulation drilling methods, supported by ultra-light custom blended drilling 
fluids.  Personnel for this task will include only experienced well construction inspectors who are 
familiar with mud rotary drilling techniques and fluid testing procedures. The ASR Systems Team 
will provide resident observation and construction services with a qualified professional geologist or 
engineer, analyze the borehole data, and design the well. 

Geophysical logs will be obtained from all wells.  Alignment surveys will be required for the test well 
as part of the drilling contractor’s services.     

Task 2.5 Hydraulic Testing and Analysis:  The testing program goal is to define the baseline 
recharge and pumping performance trends, external aquifer boundary conditions, localized wellbore 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 17     17      03/01/2007 

mounding, and clogging rate.  Obtaining this information at the north end of the ASR wellfield area, 
as proposed in the PEA, will complement data already obtained from the Santa Margarita Test 
Injection Well at the south end, providing a firm basis for wellfield design. The program will include 
step and continuous production rate tests to help define the transmissivity, storage coefficient, and 
leakance of the target formation.  The recharge tests will include a step injection and 24-hour 
continuous recharge test to define the wellbore hydraulic communication area and the mound growth 
slope.  Extended operation, or cycle, testing is not included as part of this task since these tests are 
normally completed with the actual source water and delivery system.   

The ASR Team will direct the testing program and contractor activities; collect and analyze the 
appropriate data; and report on the aquifer response and proposed design well yields.  This Well 
Construction Report will summarize the well construction, lithology, testing, and laboratory results 
from the wells.  The team will obtain baseline drinking water quality samples during the long term 
pumping test for health district permits. 

Task 2.6 Preliminary ASR Well and Wellhead Design Report:  Coordination and common 
understanding will be vital in the success of this fast-tracked program.  To ensure the ASR Systems 
Team and CAW are in alignment, a preliminary ASR well and wellhead design report for up to three 
ASR well sites will be prepared, including the operations and control strategy.  This will provide a 
process to achieve general concurrence of details such as proposed drilling methods, well 
construction materials, development methods, wellhead piping, controls, disinfection systems, pump 
to waste facilities, related improvements, and site layout.  The report will include 25% design level 
drawings for CAW review, permit application support, and requesting power grid diversions.     

Task 2.7 Preliminary Pump to Waste Facilities Design Report:  ASR wells will need to be back-
flushed every few days to every few months to maintain performance.  Permanent, permittable 
facilities will be required to accept and properly dispose of the back-flushed water.  Common back-
flush facilities will reduce the property requirements but will also require interconnection of the well 
sites with backflush water piping.  The impoundment volume requirements to support ASR 
operations will be evaluated and a matrix of options (ie: pretreatment, dispersed and centralized 
seepage pits, pipeline and operational requirements, etc.) will be developed displaying the advantages 
and disadvantages of each approach.  The ASR Systems Team will recommend a primary approach 
and develop the conceptual criteria for the pump to waste facility option, which will be incorporated 
into the Task 2.6 preliminary design report.   

Deliverables: Coring specifications 

  Test and monitor well design specifications 

  Engineer’s cost estimate for test and monitor well construction 

  Any addenda to the specifications 

  Well Construction Report 

  Preliminary Pump-To-Waste Facilities Design Report 

  Preliminary Well and Wellhead Design Report for up to three ASR wells 

Schedule: Completion by Month 10, assuming that site acquisition and permits do not hinder progress 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 18     18      03/01/2007 

Task 3. Design and Install ASR Wells 

Contingent upon review and approval of the 25% design package, CAW will make the final 
determination to proceed with the development of an ASR wellfield.  Up to three ASR wells may be 
installed along the proposed wellfield alignment.  The wells will be constructed in accordance with 
the PEA, modified by data obtained from the test well program.  Specialized recharge well 
developments methods will be used employing large volume back-flushes.  These methods have been 
developed by Tom Morris/ASR Systems and have been applied exclusively with great success on 
ASR Systems projects, achieving high recharge and recovery rates and recovery efficiencies.  The 
progress and completion of well development will be tracked by injection performance changes and 
stabilization.   

Task 3.1 Design ASR Wells and Produce Well Construction Contract:  The ASR Systems Team 
will assemble the technical specifications and drawings for the installation of up to three full scale 
ASR wells for inclusion into a CAW contract document.  Performance testing data from each well 
will be utilized immediately in the well equipping contract to finalize the pump bowl and motor 
control equipment specifications.     

Task 3.2 Agency Support:  The ASR Systems Team will support CAW and the contract bidding 
process by proving an engineer’s cost estimate, attending bid related public meetings, and preparing 
any necessary addenda.  We will assist in selection of the qualified well drilling contractor(s).  The 
team will be available to answer questions related to the technical components of the proposed work, 
assist to identify permits required, and assist the CAW in obtaining the permits for construction of the 
ASR well facilities.  Upon CAW securing the well site properties and access, the ASR System’s 
Team land surveyor will mark the permanent and temporary easements for construction. 

Task 3.3 ASR Well Installation:  The ASR Systems Team will coordinate the field activities of well 
construction with local agencies, entities, and residents, and ensure that the contractor is meeting their 
obligation to protect the public.  The team will observe the day to day activities of the contractor and 
provide resident geologic observation at appropriate times.  The team will ensure the timely and 
accurate collection of lithologic and water quality samples and geophysical logs to complete borehole 
design, health district and NPDES permitting.   

Rigorous adherence to the well drilling specifications will be critical to successfully completing a 
highly efficient well.  The drilling of the ASR well will include the use of flooded reverse circulation 
drilling methods, supported by ultra-light custom blended drilling fluids.  Personnel for this task will 
include only experienced well construction inspectors who are familiar with mud rotary drilling 
techniques and fluid testing procedures.  Borehole deviation specifications and alignment surveys will 
ensure a quality product with an evenly distributed annular seal and a sufficient effective well 
diameter to support the pumping equipment.  Geophysical logs and alignment surveys will be 
required as part of the drilling contractor’s services. 

Task 3.4 Well Testing, Analysis and Reports:  Testing for each ASR well will include initial pump 
testing to evaluate potential yield and specific capacity; step drawdown testing to evaluate well 
efficiency; a long term pumping test to evaluate the aquifer performance characteristics, including 
transmissivity, storativity and leakance; a step-recharge test to provide a baseline injection hydraulic 
response curve; and a 24 hour continuous injection test to determine the mounding rate and clogging 
potential.  Baseline drinking water quality samples will be obtained during the long term pumping 
tests for each well, for inclusion in health district permits.  The pump test data will be analyzed to 
estimate aquifer hydraulic characteristics and prepare distance-drawdown curves for proposed wells, 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 19     19      03/01/2007 

providing a basis for estimation of well interference.  A Well Completion Report will be prepared 
incorporating the results of all construction, testing and analysis activities. 

Deliverables: ASR well technical specifications, draft and final 

  Engineer’s cost estimate for ASR wells 

  Any addenda 

  Well Completion Report  for ASR wells 

Schedule: Completion by Month 19, assuming that site acquisition and permits do not hinder progress 

Task 4. Equip ASR Wells 

Design of the ASR wells sites will be carefully integrated with the hydraulic design of the CAW 
distribution system in this task, to ensure that adequate capacity exists to meet projected ultimate 
recharge and recovery flow rate requirements.  The ASR Systems Team will develop the engineering 
specifications and provide oversight for equipping up to three ASR well sites for full ASR operation.  
The equipment for each well will include designs for all appurtenances and instrumentation at each 
well site as well as any necessary off site frontage improvements.    

 Task 4.1 Design ASR Wellsites and Produce Engineering Contract Specs:  The ASR Systems 
Team will assemble the technical specifications and drawings for equipping up to three full scale 
ASR wells.  The specifications will be sufficient for inclusion into a CAW contract document.  The 
specifications will include pump, motor, electrical, mechanical, instrumentation, valves, piping, 
telemetry and SCADA control, disinfection building, metering and other appurtenances required to 
develop a functioning ASR well facility.  Wellhead designs will also be prepared for the monitor 
wells. Frontage improvements will include gutter, curb, and lighting in alignment with the master 
development plan for General Jim Moore Boulevard.  Drawings and specifications will be provided to 
CAW for 90% review and final completion (100%).   

Task 4.2 Agency Support:  The ASR Systems Team will support CAW and the contract bidding 
process by providing an engineer’s cost estimate, attending bid related public meetings, and preparing 
any necessary addenda.  The team will be available to answer questions related to the technical 
components of the proposed work, assist to identify permits required, and assist the CAW in 
obtaining the permits for equipping the ASR well facilities.  The team will assist CAW in securing 
electric power commitments. 

Task 4.3 Equip ASR Wells:  Construction services will be provided to include shop drawing and 
pay estimate review, change order support, and construction observation.  The team will ensure the 
many processes of an ASR facility come together and work in accordance with the specifications and 
manufacturers’ intentions.  Project team staff will be on site periodically and during specific phases of 
the work, such as prior to concrete pours, pressure testing, final inspection, and start-up.     

Task 4.4 Performance Testing:  All instrumentation, equipment, and controls will be thoroughly 
tested to ensure dependable operation.  This will include operating the pumping unit for pump 
acceptance to develop a performance baseline and to start the warranty.        



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 20     20      03/01/2007 

Task 4.5 Operations and Maintenance:  A completion report will be provided in the form of 
Record Drawings and an Operations and Maintenance Manual identifying new system valves and the 
operation of each ASR well facility.  A survey will be provided of the final ASR facilities, including 
both horizontal and vertical control.  The team will assist the facility operators for the first few 
months of operation to ensure proper ASR practices, performance tracking, and back-flush 
scheduling.   

Deliverables: Wellhead plans and specifications, draft and final 

  Engineers cost estimate 

  Any addenda 

  Shop drawing reviews 

  Record drawings  

  Operations and Maintenance Manual 

  Site Survey 

Schedule: Completion by Month 30 

Task 5. Project Management and Agency Coordination 

We will provide ongoing support to CAW during technical meetings, public meetings, and 
Watermaster meetings as necessary.  The Seaside Basin is currently managed by a Watermaster group 
consisting of nine entities.  Coordination and agreement among these nine entities will be important 
for project success.  In particular, coordination and communication with the Monterey Peninsula 
Water Management District (MPWMD) is crucial, as they are interested in implementing a similar 
ASR program.  Our team members have excellent working relations with the staff and management 
of the MPWMD, as well as most other members of the Watermaster board.  In particular, Padre 
Associates is a member of the ASR Systems Team, has worked with MPWMD on their ASR testing 
program, and fully understands the technical and political issues that led to the recent adjudication. 

Task 6. Added Tasks 

Additional tasks may be necessary to address certain inherent unknowns associated with the 
application of ASR technology.  The ASR Systems Team is capable and receptive to including 
additional tasks as necessary to reach a higher level of success in the ASR program and to improve its 
ultimate potential benefit for CAW.   

Hydrologic modeling, in coordination with the MPWMD, to test alternative ASR operating strategies 
using a revised version of the CVSIM model, tailored for ASR.  This task would better define annual 
storage volume availability from the Carmel River and its variation with time; cumulative storage 
volume requirements; recharge and recovery flow rate requirements to achieve ultimate effective 
application of ASR for the Seaside Basin.  Completion of this task would provide a firm basis for 
sizing of transmission pipelines and other CWP facilities. 

Task 6.1  CVSIM Hydrologic Modeling 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 21     21      03/01/2007 

Review previous CVSIM model reports regarding diversions from the Carmel River.  Assist CAW as 
needed to arrange model support services from MPWMD.  Meet with MPWMD to discuss changes to 
the model code that are needed to adequately address potential ultimate ASR operations in the 
Monterey area. Provide written directions to MPWMD regarding requested changes to the CVSIM 
model in order to evaluate proposed ASR operations. Respond to questions from MPWMD during the 
modeling process.  Review a document to be prepared by MPWMD presenting updated model results 
and prepare a draft Technical Memorandum (TM) to CAW with preliminary recommendations 
regarding diversion, treatment, storage and pipeline capacities for conveyance of water between the 
Carmel Valley and the Seaside Basin, and associated ASR storage volume requirements.  Upon 
receipt of review comments from CAW, prepare a final TM. 

Deliverable: CVSIM Technical Memorandum 

Schedule: Completion by Month 6, assuming MPWMD can complete modeling and issue a report  
within 3 months of receipt of input data. 

 

 
 

 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 22     22      03/01/2007 

Appendix D 

CWP ASR Task 1 Technical Memorandum –  Existing Data Review 

 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 23     23      03/01/2007 

Appendix E 

Phase CWP ASR Task 2 Technical Memorandum – Test  Well Site 
Development Plan 



DRAFT IMPLEMENTAION PLAN 

SSeeaassiiddee  BBaassiinn  MMoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPrrooggrraamm 

 24     24      03/01/2007 

Appendix F 

MPWMD Phase 1 ASR Environmental Impact Report  –  Executive Summary 
and Project  Descript ion 



 
VIII. 

A. – F. 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
 



Seaside Basin Groundwater Account
Per Amended Decision, Dated February  9, 2007

r du ti n ll ati n

Initial Basin-Wide Operating Yield 5600 Coastal Operating Yield 4611
Natural Safe Yield (NSY) 3000 Laguna Seca Operating Yield 989

Alternative Production Allocations

Coastal Subarea Acre-Feet Laguna Seca Subarea Acre-Feet
Seaside (Golf) 540 Pasadera 251
SNG 149 Bishop 320
Calabrese 14 York School 32
Mission Memorial 31 Laguna Seca County Park 41
Sand City 9
Total 743 Total 644

Available Coastal Operating Yield 3868 Available Laguna Seca Operating Yi 345

Standard Production Allocation

Coastal Subarea % Acre-Feet Laguna Seca Subarea % Acre-Feet
California American Wate 90.6 3504 California American Water 100 345
Seaside (Municipal) 7.43 287
Granite Rock 0.70 27
D.B.O. Development No. 1.27 49
Total 100 3868 Total 100 345

Cummulative Standard 
P o c o A oc o
of Operating Yield

 
% Acre-Feet

California American Wate 91.38 3850
Seaside (Municipal) 6.81 287
Granite Rock 0.64 27
D.B.O. Development No. 1.16 49

4213

A.



Water Year 2006 Replenishment Assessment

Initial Basin-Wide Operating Yield 5600 Coastal Operating Yield
Natural Safe Yield (NSY) 3000 Laguna Seca Operating Yield
Natural Safe Yield Available to SPA 2022

Water Year 2006 Actual Production
Actual Actual
Coastal Alternative Production Acre-Feet Laguna Seca Alternative Production A
Seaside (Golf) 465 Pasadera 
SNG 8 Laguna Seca/Bishop
Calabrese 0 York School
Mission Memorial 22 Laguna Seca County Park
Sand City 0.05
Total 495.05 Total
Actual  
Coastal Standard Production Acre-Feet Laguna Seca Standard Production
California American Water 3263 California American Water
Seaside (Municipal) 332
D.B.O. Development No. 27 0
Granite Rock 0
Total Coastal SP 3595 Total Laguna Seca SP

2006 Replenishment Assessment $1,132.00

Standard Production Acre-Feet Share of NSY SY Overproductio Assessment Operating Yield OverproductionAssessment Total
California American Water 3709 1848 1861 $2,106,652.00 $2,
Seaside (Municipal) 332 138 149 $168,668.00 45 $50,940.00 $2
Granite Rock 0 13 0 0
D.B.O. Development No. 27 0 23 0 0
Total Production 4041 2022 2010 $2,275,320.00 $2,

A.



Water Year 2007 Water Account

Initial Basin-Wide Operating Yield 5600 Coastal Operating Yield 4611
Natural Safe Yield (NSY) 3000 Laguna Seca Operating Yield 989

2007 Alternative Production Allocation

Coastal Subarea Acre-Feetaguna Seca Subarea Acre-Feet
Seaside (Golf) 540 Pasadera 251
SNG 149 Bishop 320
Calabrese 14 York School 32
Mission Memorial 31 Laguna Seca County Park 41
Sand City 9
Total 743 Total 644

Available Coastal Operating Yield 3868 Available Laguna Seca Operating 345

2007 Standard Production Allocation
Carryover StoragTransfers In Transfers Out Total Ava

Coastal Subarea % Acre-Feet Acre-Feet Acre-Feet Acre-Feet For Produ
California American Water 90.6 3504 141 3645
Seaside (Municipal) 7.43 287 0 287
Granite Rock 0.70 27 27 54
D.B.O. Development No. 27 1.27 49 49 98
Total 100 3868

Carryover StoragTransfers In Transfers Out Total Ava
Laguna Seca Subarea % Acre-Feet Acre-Feet Acre-Feet Acre-Feet For Produ

California American Water 100 345 345

Total 100 345

Basin Replenishment Account

W
Yea

ater 
r 2006 Water Year 2007

Water Year 
2008

Water Year 
2009 Water Year 2009

Water Year 
2010 Total Replen

411 411

A.



                       VIII. B. 
                                                      
            

     
 

RULES AND REGULATIONS  
 

OF THE 
 

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 
 The Watermaster for the Seaside Basin was created on March 27, 2006 by entry of 
Judgment in California American Water v. City of Seaside, et al. (Case No. M66343, 
California Superior Court, Monterey County).  A copy of the Judgment is appended to 
these Rules and Regulations.  The purpose of the Watermaster is to assist the Court in the 
administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Judgment.  All actions of the 
Watermaster shall be governed by the terms of the Judgment and these Rules and 
Regulations.  In the event of any conflict between the terms of the Judgment and these 
Rules and Regulations, the Judgment, together with any further or supplemental orders or 
directions from the Court, shall control the actions of the Watermaster.  
 
2.0 Definitions 
 
 Words and phrases which are defined in the Judgment shall have the same 
meaning when used in these Rules and Regulations.  Other terms used in these Rules and 
Regulations shall have the meaning ascribed to them herein.    
 
 2.1 Parties    
 
 “Parties” shall mean and refer, individually and collectively, to California 
American Water Company (“CalAm”), the Public Agency Parties and the Landowner 
Group Parties.  “Public Agency Party” shall mean and refer individually to the cities of 
Seaside, Sand City, Del Rey Oaks and Monterey, the County of Monterey, the Monterey 
County Water Resources Agency and the Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District.  “Landowner Party” shall mean and refer to a Producer in the Coastal Subarea 
and the Laguna Seca Subarea which is not a Public Agency Party or CalAm. 
 
3.0 Watermaster Board 
 
 3.1 Representatives and Voting 
 
 The Watermaster may only act by and through the Watermaster Board.  The 
Watermaster Board shall consist of nine (9) members (“Members”).  Members shall be 
appointed by each of the following Parties or group of Parties in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in section 4 of these Rules and Regulations. A vote by a Member 
shall cast the following number of voting positions on the question presented to the 
Watermaster Board.   
 

Deleted: the  question



 
 2 

 
 Party/Group      Votes 
 
 California American Water    3 votes 
 City of Seaside     2 votes 
 Monterey County Water Resources Agency  2 votes 
 Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 2 votes 
 City of Sand City     1 vote 
 City of Monterey     1 vote 
 City of Del Rey Oaks     1 vote 
 Landowner Parties Group (Coastal Subarea)  1/2 vote 
 Landowner Parties Group (Laguna Seca Subarea) 1/2 vote 
 
  3.1.1 Quorum 
 
  A minimum of six (6) Members shall be required to constitute a quorum 
of the Watermaster Board.  No fewer than seven (7) affirmative votes shall be required 
for any action by the Watermaster.  Any Member may request a roll call vote on any 
question or motion considered by the Watermaster Board, and the ayes and noes 
thereon shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 
 
 3.2 Organization of the Watermaster Board 
 
 At the first meeting of the Watermaster Board each year, the Watermaster Board 
shall elect a Chairperson, and a Vice Chairperson from its Membership.  The 
Watermaster Board shall also select a Secretary, Treasurer and such assistant secretaries 
and assistant treasurer as may be appropriate.  The Secretary, Treasurer, or any assistant 
or administrator appointed by the Watermaster Board need not be a Member. 
 
 3.3 Advisory Committees 
 
 The Watermaster Board may establish such committees and subcommittees as it 
deems necessary to advise Watermaster Board on specific issues.  Persons appointed to 
such committees or subcommittees need not be a Member.  No more than five (5) 
Members or their Alternates shall sit on any individual committee or subcommittee.   
Each committee member shall be entitled to one (1) vote only. 
 
  3.3.1 Standing Committees 
 
  The Watermaster Board has established the following standing 
committees. 
 
   3.3.1.1   Technical Advisory Committee 
 
  The purpose of the Technical Advisory Committee is to advise the 
Watermaster Board regarding implementation of the physical solution, and to perform 
such specific tasks as the Watermaster assigns to the Technical Advisory Committee 
from time to time.  
 
   3.3.1.2   Budget and Finance Committee    

Deleted: A.

Deleted: B.



 
 3 

 
  The purpose of the Budget and Finance Committee is to advise the 
Watermaster Board regarding the funding of implementation of the physical solution, 
including operations of the Watermaster.   
 
 3.4 Regular Meetings 
 
 Regular meetings of the Watermaster Board shall be held on the first Wednesday 
of each month.  The meetings will be held at Soper Field Community Center, in Seaside, 
California or another location set forth in the monthly meeting agenda and will begin at 
1:30 p.m., unless a different time is set forth in the agenda.   
 
 3.5 Special Meetings 
 
  3.5.1 Special Meetings Called by Watermaster Board 
 
  A special meeting of the Watermaster Board may be called by the 
Watermaster Board at any regular or special meeting of the Watermaster Board. 
 
  3.5.2 Special Meetings Called by Chair or Members 
 
  A special meeting of the Watermaster Board may be called at any time by 
the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson or by any three (3) Members, by written notice 
delivered personally or mailed to all Parties and Interested Persons, at least twenty-four 
(24) hours on a business day before the time of each such meeting in the case of personal 
delivery, and five (5) days’ notice prior to such meeting in the case of mail if the special 
meeting is being called under urgent circumstances.  If a special meeting is called by the 
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or by any three (3) Members, and no urgent circumstance 
exists, then at least ten (10) days’ notice must be provided to all Parties.  The notice shall 
specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be transacted or 
discussed.  No other business shall be considered at these meetings by the Watermaster 
Board.  The written notice may be dispensed with as to any Member who at or prior to 
the time the special meeting convenes, files with the Secretary of the Watermaster Board 
a written waiver of notice.  The written notice may also be dispensed with as to any 
Member who is actually present at the meeting at the time it convenes.  The notice shall 
be posted at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the special meeting in the posting 
locations referred to in section 3.6 of these Rules and Regulations. 
 
 3.6 Meeting Agendas 
 
 At least 72 hours before a regular meeting of the Watermaster Board, or at least 
24 hours before a special meeting of the Watermaster Board, the Secretary of the 
Watermaster, or its designee, shall post an agenda containing a brief general description 
of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items to 
be discussed in closed session, and deliver a copy of the agenda to the Members and to 
Persons who have made a written request to be added to the Watermaster’s list of 
interested Persons.  A brief general description of an item generally need not exceed 20 
words. The agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular or special meeting 
and shall be posted at the places which have been designated by the Public Agency 
Parties for the posting of official agendas in their respective jurisdictions.  If requested, 



 
 4 

the agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation 
thereof. The agenda shall include information regarding how, to whom, and when a 
request for disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services may be made by a person with a disability who requires a modification or 
accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting. 
  
 3.7 Meeting Procedures 
 
  3.7.1 Conduct for Meetings 
 
  Meetings of the Watermaster Board shall be called to order by the 
Chairperson or, in his or her absence, the Vice Chairperson.  Watermaster Board 
meetings shall be conducted in conformity with the procedures established for meetings 
of public agencies pursuant to the California Open Meeting Law (the “Brown Act”), 
California Government Code section 54950 et seq., as it may be amended from time to 
time. 
 
  3.7.2 Minutes 
 
  The Secretary shall keep accurate minutes of all meetings of the 
Watermaster Board which reflect all actions taken by the Watermaster.  Copies thereof 
shall be furnished to all Members and Interested Persons.  Copies of minutes shall 
constitute notice of any Watermaster Board action therein reported. 
 
  3.7.3 Closed Session 
 
  The Watermaster Board may convene closed session meetings in 
accordance with Brown Act procedures. 
 
4.0 Members  
 
 4.1 Appointment of Members   
 
 The Public Agency Parties, groups of Landowner Parties identified in section 3.1 
and CalAm have each appointed an initial Member to sit on the Watermaster Board for a 
two (2) year term ending at the first regular meeting of the Watermaster in January of  
2008.  The Public Agency Parties, groups of Landowner Parties and CalAm shall each 
appoint or reappoint one Member in November of every second year, beginning in 
November of 2007, to sit on the Watermaster Board for a two (2) year term.  Except for 
the initial Members, each Member shall assume office at the first regular meeting of the 
Watermaster Board held in January of every second year, beginning in January of 2008.  
The Secretary shall give notice of this requirement to each of the Parties during the 
October preceding each such January.    
 
 4.2 Alternate Members 
 
 In addition to appointing a Member, CalAm and the Public Agency Parties may 
also appoint an alternate Member in the same manner and for the same terms as provided 



 
 5 

for Members in these Rules and Regulations.  Each Member representing a group of 
Landowner Parties may act as an alternate for the Member representing the other group 
of Landowner Parties.  A duly appointed Alternate Member may exercise all of the rights 
of a Member at a meeting of the Watermaster Board where the Member for whom the 
Alternate Member sits, is absent.   
 
 4.3 Appointments 
 
 Appointments of Members and Alternate Members, if any, shall be made in a 
writing signed on behalf of the Party or group of Parties identified in section 3.1 which is 
delivered to the Secretary no later than the close of public comment for the agenda item 
regarding announcement of appointment of new Members at the November meeting.  The 
Watermaster Board shall give notice to the Court of any person appointed as a Member 
or Alternate Member. 
 
 4.4 Vacancies 
 
 Should a Member or Alternate Member resign or otherwise be unable to complete 
his or her term on the Watermaster Board, the Party or group of Parties which appointed 
such Member shall appoint a new Member to complete the unexpired term, and deliver 
notice of that appointment to the Secretary.    
 
 4.5 Special Rules for Appointment of Members by Landowner Groups  
 
 Appointment of Members by the Landowner Parties shall take place at each 
November meeting of the Watermaster Board (except for the appointment of initial 
Members) where the appointment of new Members is to be announced.  Each Landowner 
Party will vote for their preferred Member in writing, signed by an agent of the 
Landowner Party and delivered to the Watermaster Board no later than the close of public 
comment for the agenda item regarding election of the Landowner Group Members.  
Voting rights may only be transferred upon permanent sale of 51% or more of the 
Landowner’s respective Production Allocation. Landowner Parties may only vote for the 
representative for their respective subarea (i.e., Coastal Subarea Landowner Group 
Parties vote for the Coastal Subarea Member; and Laguna Seca Landowner Group Parties 
vote for the Laguna Seca Subarea Member).  Should a Member appointed by a 
Landowner Group be unable to complete his or her term on the Watermaster Board, the 
Landowner Group which appointed such Member shall give notice to the Secretary who 
shall schedule an election at the next meeting of the Watermaster Board for the 
replacement of that Member to be held in the same manner as regular appointments of 
Landowner Group Members.  Landowner Group Members are elected by cumulative 
voting, with each member of the Landowner Group entitled to one vote for each acre-foot 
of Production Allocation established in the Judgment.   
 
 4.6 Compensation 
 
 No Member shall be compensated by the Watermaster for their service on the 
Watermaster Board. 
 
5.0 Administration 
 



 
 6 

 5.1 Watermaster Office 
 
 The Watermaster office shall be located at 2600 Garden Road, Suite 228, 
Monterey, CA 93940. The Watermaster Board may change the location of the 
Watermaster office from time to time to a place located in Monterey County.   
 
 5.2 Records 
 
 The minutes of Watermaster Board meetings shall be open to inspection and 
maintained at the Watermaster office.  Copies of minutes and other Watermaster records 
may be obtained for inspection in accordance with the procedures set forth in the 
California Public Records Act.  Copies of records may be obtained upon payment of the 
actual cost of duplication established by the Watermaster. 
 
 5.3 Notice Lists 
 
 The Watermaster shall maintain at all times a current list of the Parties to whom 
notices are to be sent and their addresses for purposes of service.  The Watermaster shall 
also maintain a list of interested Persons (“Interested Persons”) that shall include all 
Persons who have made a written request to the Watermaster to be included on the list of 
Interested Persons.  All notices, determinations, requests, demands, objections, reports 
and other papers and processes required to be delivered to Interested Persons under the 
Judgment, these Rules and Regulations or by Order of the Watermaster, shall be 
delivered to all Parties and Interested Persons. 
 
6.0 Budget 
 
 The Watermaster Board will annually adopt a budget for each Fiscal Year stating 
the anticipated annual expenses required for implementation of the Judgment, including 
reasonable reserve funds.  Each annual budget will contain three (3) separate 
components: (1) an Administrative Budget; (2) a Monitoring and Planning Budget; and, 
(3) a Replenishment Budget.  Seven (7) affirmative votes shall be required for the 
adoption of any budget or budget assessment by the Watermaster Board.  No Member 
representing a Landowner Party may participate in any vote concerning the approval of 
the Administrative Budget or Mitigation and Monitoring Plan Budget or the amount of 
any assessment levied by the Watermaster Board to fund those budgets. 
 
 6.1 Adoption of Budget and Budget Assessments 
 
  No later than October of 2006, and no later than May of each year 
thereafter, the Watermaster Board shall adopt a tentative budget, including assessments, 
for the ensuing Fiscal Year.   The tentative budget will be mailed by the Secretary to each 
Party no earlier than November 1 and no later than November 15 before the beginning of 
the next Fiscal Year. 
 
  6.1.1 Objections 
 
  Objections to the tentative budget by any Producer must be submitted in 
writing to the Watermaster Board within fifteen (15) days after the date of mailing of the 
tentative budget.  If no timely objections are received, the tentative budget shall become 

Deleted: 2



 
 7 

the final budget.  If objections are received, the Watermaster Board shall consider the 
objections within ten (10) days thereafter and shall prepare a final budget.  The final 
budget will be thereafter mailed to each Producer together with a statement of the amount 
assessed to each Producer. 
 
  6.1.2 Appeal to Court 
 
  Any Producer may apply to the Court within fifteen (15) days after the 
mailing of the final budget for revision based on specific objections.  Payments of 
assessments otherwise required shall be made despite the filing of a request for revision 
with the Court.  Upon any revision by the Court, the Watermaster shall either remit to the 
Producers their pro rata portions of any reduction in the budget, or credit their accounts 
with respect to any assessment for the next ensuing Administrative Year as the Court 
shall direct. 
 
 6.2 Payment of Assessments 
 
 All amounts assessed by the Watermaster Board in the final budget shall be paid 
to the Watermaster by the Party assessed no later than January 15th of the Fiscal Year to 
which the assessment relates.  If such payment by any Producer is not timely made, the 
Watermaster shall add a penalty of five percent (5%) thereof to the amount assessed 
against such Producer. 
 
 
  6.2.1 Contributions to Budget 
 
  The Watermaster Board may accept contributions of money, goods or 
services in furtherance of its purposes. 
 
 6.3 Administrative Budget 
 
 The Watermaster Board shall adopt an Administrative Budget for each Fiscal 
Year in an amount sufficient to fund the costs associated with the administration of the 
Watermaster.  The Administrative Budget for the first Fiscal Year shall not exceed ONE 
HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000).  The first ONE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000) of the Administrative Budget shall be assessed 
against California American Water Company, City of Seaside and City of Sand City in 
the following percentage shares: 
 
 California American Water  83% 
 City of Seaside   14.4% 
 City of Sand City   2.6% 
 
 6.4 Monitoring and Management Program Budget 
 
 The Watermaster Board shall develop a budget called the “Planning and 
Monitoring Budget”, in an amount sufficient to fund the cost of the Monitoring and 
Management Plan referred to in section 7.  The Planning and Monitoring Budget for the 
first Fiscal Year shall not exceed TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($200,000). The Watermaster Board shall also levy a one time assessment called the 

Deleted: 3



 
 8 

“Capital Improvement and Groundwater Model Assessment” in an amount sufficient 
to fund the cost of the capital improvements and groundwater model described in the 
Monitoring and Management Program, including but not limited to (1) installation of 
water quality and water level monitoring wells; (2) implementation of piezometric and 
water quality monitoring program; (3) installation of sentinel wells to detect seawater 
intrusion into on-shore portions of the Basin; (4) development of a groundwater model, 
including if necessary, exploratory  borehole drilling, geophysical surveys and improved 
estimates of natural and secondary recharge in the Basin.  The total amount of the Capital 
Improvement and Groundwater Model Assessment shall not exceed ONE MILLION 
DOLLARS ($1,000,000).  The total amount of both the Planning and Monitoring Budget 
and the Capital Improvement and Groundwater Model Assessment shall be assessed 
against the Standard Producers in the Coastal Subarea in the following shares:   
 
 California American Water  91% 
 City of Seaside   7% 
 Granite Rock     1% 
 D.B.O. Development No. 27  1% 
 
At such time as a Party within the Coastal Subarea chooses to change its Alternative 
Production to a Standard Production Allocation, that Party will be assessed a 
proportionate share of the Monitoring and Management Plan Budget.   
 
 6.5 Replenishment Budget 
 
 As a part of its annual budget process, the Watermaster Board shall declare the 
per-acre-foot cost of the Replenishment Assessments in October of each Water Year.  
The per-acre foot cost of Replenishment Assessments for Production in excess of Natural 
Safe Yield shall be based on the anticipated cost of Artificial Replenishment, including 
the cost to construct, operate, and maintain facilities necessary for replenishment of the 
Basin.  Replenishment Assessments may only be used for Artificial Replenishment.   
 
  6.5.1 Assessment on Production Over Natural Safe-Yield 
 
 At the end of each Water Year the Watermaster shall levy an Over-Production 
Replenishment Assessment for Production by any Party over the Natural Safe-Yield of 
the Seaside Basin.  The Over-Production Replenishment Assessment does not apply to 
Production under an Alternative Production Allocation so long as such Production is 
within the fixed amount established for that Alternate Producer in Table 2 of 
Section III.B.3 of the Judgment.  The Watermaster will determine each Producer’s Over-
Production Replenishment Assessment, if any, by using the following method: 
 
   6.5.1.1   For purposes of determining the Over-Production 
Replenishment Assessment each Standard Producer is entitled to the following 
percentage share of Natural Safe Yield and/or the Operating Yield that is in excess of 
production by those Parties with an Alternative Production Allocation: 
 
   California American Water  91.38 % 
   City of Seaside     6.81% 
   Granite Rock        .64% 
   D.B.O. Development     1.16% 

Deleted: Safe 



 
 9 

 
   6.5.1.2   These percentages were determined by first multiplying 
the Coastal Subarea Standard Production Allocations by that portion of the Operating 
Yield for the Coastal Subarea which is in excess of the sum of the Alternative Production 
Allocations within the Coastal Subarea.  (The Standard Production Allocations do not 
total 100 percent.  Thus, after the initial calculation, the Standard Production Allocation 
must continue to be applied to the remainder until less than one acre-foot remains.)  
Second, California American’s Laguna Seca Subarea Allocation (no other standard 
producer has a Laguna Seca allocation) must be added to California American’s total 
allocation and each Standard Producer’s percentage share of the Operating Yield must be 
recalculated.   
 
   6.5.1.3   If any Standard Producer produces more than the amount 
of water determined by applying its percentage to the Natural Safe Yield, then 
Watermaster shall assess a Replenishment Assessment for that Standard Producer.  The 
amount of the Replenishment Assessment will be determined by multiplying the 
Replenishment Assessment per-acre-foot cost by the number of acre-feet pumped in 
excess of that Standard Producer’s allocation of the Natural Safe Yield.   
 
   6.5.1.4   At such time as a Party chooses to change its Alternative 
Production to a Standard Production Allocation, the percentage shares shall be 
redetermined.   
 
 
 
  6.5.2 Assessment on Production Over Operating Yield 
 
  The Watermaster Board shall levy an additional Replenishment 
Assessment on any Alternative Producer for each acre-foot of water produced over their 
respective Alternative Allocation, and on any Standard Producer for each acre-foot 
produced over their respective percentage share of the Operating Safe Yield.  Should the 
Watermaster be unable to procure replenishment water to offset Production over the 
Operating Safe Yield in the previous Water Year, the Watermaster will prohibit any 
Production over the Operating Safe Yield in the current year or until such time as 
replenishment water is provided. 
 
  6.5.3 Payment of Replenishment Assessment 
 
  At the end of each Water Year, the Watermaster will promptly notify each 
Producer by mail of any Replenishment Assessment owed.  Payment must be made by 
January 15th of the following year.  If such payment by any Producer is not timely made, 
the Watermaster shall add a penalty of five percent (5%) thereof to the amount assessed 
against such Producer. 
 
  6.5.4 California American Credit Toward Replenishment Assessment 
 
  California American’s expenditures for water supply augmentation may 
also provide replenishment water for the Seaside Basin.  Accordingly, on an annual basis, 
California American will provide the Watermaster Board with an accounting of all 
expenditures it has made for water supply augmentation that it contends has or will result 

Deleted: [Reserved for Clarification re 
Method of Calculating the Over-
Production Replenishment Assessment]



 
 10 

in replenishment of the Basin.  The Watermaster Board shall review these expenditures 
and if it concurs, reduce California American’s Replenishment Assessment obligation, 
for that year, by an amount equal to the amount claimed by California American.  To the 
extent that the Watermaster Board rejects any of the claimed amounts, it shall provide 
California American with an explanation for the rejection and allow California American 
an opportunity to meet and confer on the disputed amount.  In the event that the 
Watermaster Board and California American cannot agree, the matter may be referred to 
the Court through a request filed by California American. 
 
7.0 Monitoring and Management Program 
 
 Within sixty (60) days of entry of Judgment, the Watermaster Board shall approve 
the Seaside Groundwater Basin Monitoring and Management Program.  The Monitoring 
and Management Program shall conform to the criteria set forth in Exhibit A to the 
Judgment, and shall include but not be limited to a seawater intrusion contingency plan, 
criteria for the annual collection and analysis of groundwater production and quality data, 
land use data, and the development of criteria for modification of the Operating Safe 
Yield.  The Monitoring and Management Program shall also include criteria to determine 
the Total Useable Storage Space in the Basin.  The Watermaster Board may amend the 
Monitoring and Management Program from time to time.   
 
8.0 Operating Yield and Material Injury 
 
 Pursuant to the Judgment, the Watermaster must continually monitor for Material 
Injury to the Seaside Basin.  If the Watermaster Board determines that groundwater 
extractions at the Operating Yield are resulting in Material Injury, the Watermaster Board 
will immediately present the Court with a report detailing the circumstances constituting 
such Material Injury and, if Watermaster deems appropriate, a recommendation for a 
reduction in the Operating Yield to respond to the perceived material Injury.  In the event 
that the Court concurs in the Watermaster’s conclusion of Material Injury, the 
Watermaster Board shall determine a lower Operating Yield in accordance with the 
Principles and Procedures attached as Exhibit A to the Judgment, and through the 
application of criteria that it shall develop for this purpose. 
 
9.0 Procedures For Assignment and Transfer of Production Allocations 
 
 Parties proposing to assign or transfer any portion of their Production Allocation 
must submit a written notice to the Watermaster forty-five (45) days prior to the effective 
date of the proposed assignment or transfer.  The notice shall include all details of the 
assignment/transfer (other than details related to consideration for such assignment or 
transfer), including thorough descriptions of:  (1) the Production Allocation being 
assigned/transferred; (2) the assignor/assignee or transferor/transferee; (3) the duration of 
assignment/transfer; and (4) the quantity of Production Allocation being 
assigned/transferred.  The Secretary shall transmit a copy of the notice to each of the 
Members.  Within twenty-one (21) days of the mailing of the notice from the Secretary, 
any Member may file an objection to the proposed assignment/transfer with the 
Secretary.  If no objection is received within that time, the proposed assignment/transfer 
shall become effective in accordance with its terms.  If an objection is received within 
that time, the Secretary shall cause the matter to be placed on the agenda for the next 
available meeting of the Watermaster Board.  At the meeting, the Member who filed the 



 
 11 

objection will carry the burden of proving to the Watermaster Board, by a preponderance 
of the evidence, that the production contemplated by the assignment/transfer will 
significantly increase the risk of Material Injury to the Basin above the risk posed by 
production absent the assignment/transfer.   At the conclusion of the hearing, the 
Watermaster Board shall make its determination regarding any increased risk of Material 
Injury.  If the Watermaster Board determines that the proposed assignment/transfer will 
not significantly increase risk of Material Injury, the proposed the assignment/transfer 
shall thereupon become effective.  If the Watermaster Board determines, based on its 
detailed written findings, that the proposed assignment/transfer will result in significant 
increase of risk of Material Injury, the Watermaster may impose such conditions on the 
proposed assignment/transfer as it deems necessary to reduce such risk.    
 
10.0 Storage 
 
 Prior to the beginning of the next Administrative Year, the Watermaster Board 
shall declare the next year’s Total Useable Storage Space for the Seaside Basin.  The 
Watermaster Board may periodically amend the quantity of Total Useable Storage Space 
throughout the year based upon criteria set forth in the Seaside Groundwater Basin 
Monitoring and Management Plan.  Parties seeking to store water in the Seaside Basin 
shall follow the procedures set forth in the Judgment. 
 
11.0 Reporting by Parties 
 
 Pursuant to the terms of the Judgment, all Parties are required to install, at their 
own cost, devices to measure the quantity of water they extract from the Seaside Basin.  
All Parties shall report their extraction quantities to Watermaster for the preceding 
calendar quarter, in writing, on January 15, April 15 and July 15 and October 15 of each 
Water Year.  The water measuring devices must meet the following standards, which are 
also requirements of the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District: 
 
 11.1 A minimum of eight diameters of straight pipe upstream and downstream 
of the centerline of the meter (i.e., no bends or valves) must be provided to limit 
turbulence at the meter.  Exceptions can be made if it can be demonstrated that the meter 
is installed according to the manufacturer’s recommendations for straight unobstructed 
flow lengths upstream and downstream of the meter. 
 
 11.2 The meter installation must be configured to provide a full flow of water 
in the pipe at the meter under all flow conditions. 
 
 11.3 The meter must be situated such that all water produced from the well is 
measured. 
 
 11.4 Following installation, the meter must be maintained to an accuracy of 
plus or minus five percent (±5%) of true flow. 
 
 11.5 The meter must be equipped with a totalizer that is susceptible to 
correction only by changing mechanical gear equipment. 
 



 
 12 

 11.6 The water meter should be installed in accordance with good design 
practices and sufficient space should be provided to allow access for inspections and 
testing as may, from time to time, be deemed necessary. 
 
 11.7 The specified flow range of the meter should be consistent with the range 
of flows provided from the well. 
 
 11.8 If solid material (e.g., silt, sand, rust particles, etc.) is present in the 
discharge from the well, a strainer or filter should be installed in the pipe upstream of the 
meter to avoid fouling of the meter. 
 
 11.9 The well discharge piping, valves, connections, and meter should be water 
tight.  “Wet dial face” meters should be avoided.  These meters tend to become 
unreadable over time, requiring maintenance that could be avoided with the installation 
of a meter that precludes entry of discharge water into the dial compartment (i.e., a “dry 
dial face”). 
 
 11.10 The meter and discharge line should be protected from freezing, where 
possible, by installing the meter underground, below the frost line, wrapped in insulation, 
or otherwise enclosing the meter in an insulated box. 
 
 11.11 Appropriate fittings should be used to allow easy installation and 
maintenance of the meter. 
 
 11.12 The water meter should be installed by a qualified, experienced 
professional. 
 
 11.13 Manufacturers of water meters that are satisfactory to the Watermaster 
include, but are not limited to: 
 
 • McCrometer Water Meters 
 • Invensys Meters, Inc. 
 • Sparling Instruments, Inc. 
 • Badger Meter 
 • Water Specialties Corporation 
 
12.0 Notice 
 
 All notices, determinations, requests, and reports required to be delivered to 
interested persons shall be delivered to all Parties and all persons on Watermaster’s list of 
Interested Persons.  Delivery or service of any notice of document required to be served 
upon or delivered shall be deemed made by deposit in the mail, first class postage 
prepaid, addressed as shown on the Watermaster’s list of Parties or Interested Persons, or 
by alternative means of delivery (such as email or facsimile) agreed to in advance by a 
Party or Interested Party.  Any Party or Interested Person desiring to be relieved of 
receiving deliveries from Watermaster may file, in writing, a waiver. 
 



 
 13 

13.0 Watermaster Annual Report 
 
 The Watermaster will prepare and file with the Court, and mail to each of the 
Parties on or before November 15th of each Water Year, an annual report for the 
preceding Administrative Year.  The Watermaster’s annual report shall address the 
following matters, in addition to other matters deemed appropriate by the Watermaster or 
requested by the Court: (1) groundwater extractions; (2) groundwater storage; (3) amount 
of artificial replenishment, if any, performed by the Watermaster; (4) leases or sales of 
Production Allocations; (5) use of imported, reclaimed, or desalinated water as a source 
of water for storage or as a water supply for lands overlying the Seaside Basin; (6) 
violations of the Judgment or the Rules and Regulations of the Watermaster, and any 
corrective action taken; (7) Watermaster administration costs; (8) the fixed per acre fee 
for replenishment assessments, and the amount of replenishment assessments levied and 
paid; (9) all components of the Watermaster budget; and, (10) recommendations.   
 
14.0 Compliance With Judgment and Rules and Regulations 
 
 The Watermaster Board will promptly review the written request for compliance 
with all terms of the Judgment and these Rules and Regulations, and the Watermaster 
Board will promptly place the matter on a regular meeting agenda for consideration and 
action by the Watermaster Board. 
 
15.0 Computation of Time 
 
 The time in which any act provided by the Judgment or these Rules and 
Regulations shall be computed by excluding the first day and including the last, unless 
the last is a holiday.  Holidays are every Sunday and any other days that are specified or 
provided as holidays in Government Code sec. 6700. 
 
16.0 Review of Watermaster Decisions 
 
 Any action, decision, rule or procedure of the Watermaster shall be subject to 
review by the Court on motion filed by any Party in accordance with the following 
procedure. 
 
 16.1 Effective Date of Watermaster Action 
 
  Any order, decision or action of the Watermaster on a noticed specific 
agenda item shall be deemed to have occurred on the date of the order, decision or action. 
 
 16.2 Notice of Motion 
 
  Any Party, by a regularly noticed motion, may petition the Court for 
review of the Watermaster’s action or decision.  The motion shall be deemed filed when a 
copy, conformed as filed with the Court, has been delivered to the Watermaster with the 
service fee established by the Watermaster.  The fee shall be sufficient to cover the cost 
of photocopying and mailing the motion to each Party.  The Watermaster shall prepare 
copies and mail a copy to each Party on the Watermaster’s list of Parties. 
 
 16.3 Time for Motion 



 
 14 

 
  A motion to review any Watermaster action or decision shall be filed 
within thirty (30) days after such Watermaster action or decision, except that motions to 
review Budget Assessments and Replenishment Assessments shall be filed within fifteen 
(15) days of mailing a notice of assessment. 
 



VIII. D.

Milestones BLUE TEXT = COMPLETED
Administrative
Board Terms Two-Year
Budget (Administrative6 January 15 each year
Budget (Operations)6 January 15 each year
Budget (Replenishment)6 January 15 each year

Watermaster Board Regular Meeting Schedule Wednesday, March 07, 2007
Wednesday, April 04, 2007
Wednesday, May 02, 2007
Wednesday, June 06, 2007
Tuesday, July 03, 2007
Wednesday, August 01, 2007
Wednesday, September 05, 2007
Wednesday, October 03, 2007
Wednesday, November 07, 2007
Wednesday, December 05, 2007

Operations
Critical Dates
Adjudicaton ordered by Court and filed March 27, 2006
Monitoring and Management Plan submitted to Court for review May 17, 2006
Watermaster submission of a revised Monitoring and Management Plan and 
Replenishment Assessment Calculation to the Court January 12, 2007
Service Contract for Well Installation and Implementation of BMMP 

1-Year Anniversary of Adjudication: Provide further estimates, programs and plans5 March 27, 2007
Report to Court designation of sites for drilling groundwater monitoring wells required by
BMMP June 11, 2007

Timelines
Groundwater Modeling for Seaside Basin Through Consultant
1. Review groundwater models, select best model for enhancement July - August 2006
2. Develop scope of services & budget for model enhancement project To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
3. Advertise, select consultant, execute contract To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
4. Complete model development & calibration, run scenario evaluation, develop 
improved estimates of basin recharge and safe-yield November 2006 - March 31, 2007
5. Provide training in use of model to Watermaster TAC April 2007

Seaside Basin Management Program
1. Develop scope of services and budget for consultant To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
2. Advertise, select consultant, execute contract To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
3. Develop BMMP, Basin Watermaster Database, and data and analysis protocol December 2006 - February 28, 2007
4. Evaluate options for importation of supplemental water supplies into the Basin, 
develop action plan December 2006 - February 28, 2007
5. Using groundwater model from task above, analyze & develop strategies for 
improved basin management April - June 2007
6. Develop action plan to avoid adverse impacts on basin March - June 2007
7. Draft Basin Management Plan for Watermaster review June - September 2007
8. Produce final BMMP October 2007

Basin Monitor Well Construction
1. Develop scope of services and RFP for consultant program oversight To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
2. Review proposals, secure oversight consultant contract To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
3. Oversight consultant completes site acquisition approvals June - July 2007
4. Develop scope of services and request bids for drilling/monitor wells January - March 31, 2007
5. Review bids, secure contract(s) April 2007
6. Drill, equip and collect initial monitoring data May - September 2007

...adjudicate rights of various parties... and ...provide for the long-term management of the Seaside Basin ...by reducing the drawdown to the level 
of Natural Safe Yield.

SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER



VIII. D.
7. Prepare and submit completion report to Watermaster September - October 2007

Creation of Consolidated Basic Groundwater Resource Database
1. Develop database RFP To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
2. Review proposals, select consultant To be determined at March 7, 2007 Board meeting
3. Develop and approve database format February - April 2007
4. Populate database (historical data from all sources) March - April 2007
5. Populate database (current monitoring data) March - May 2007
6. Prepare database documentation report April - June 2007

Other Critical Dates
Each Producer1 is authorized to Produce its Production Allocation2 within the 
designated Subarea1 in each of the first three Water Years.3 Alternative Producers may 
change to Standard Production. Each 3 years

Commencing with the fourth Water Year and Triennially thereafter, the Operating Yield 
for both Subareas will be decreased by 10% until the Operating Yield is equivalent to 
the Natural Safe Yield unless by recharge or reclaimed water use results in a decrease 
in production of Native Water as required by the decision.

- 75% of the Operating Yield of 5,600 af could be decreased 10% 1/1/0'9
- Operating yield could decrease 10% every three years on October 1st until it is 
the equivalent of Natural Safe Yield

Each Water Year by November 15th, the Watermaster will determine and levy a 
Replenishment Assessment4 on each Standard Producer1, with payment due from 
Producer 40 days after the levy is mailed November 15 each year

After the close of each Water Year, the Watermaster will determine and levy a 
Replenishment Assessment4 against all Producers1 that incurred Operating Yield Over 
Production during the Water Year, with payment due from Producer by January 15th. November 30 each year

California American Water is to submit annually to the Watermaster any augmentation 
to the water supply for possible credit toward Replenishment Assessment Annually
Water level monitoring - monthly data collection from all members          Reported: Annually
Water quality monitoring - yearly data collection from all members         Reported: Annually
Summary report of water resources data to all members/parties         Reported: Quarterly
Annual Report to Court November 15 each year

1 See Sheet 2
2 Base water rights x Operating Yield in excess of the sum of the Alternative Production Allocations (See Sheet 2)
3 October 1 through September 30
4 Replenishment Assessment to offset the cumulative Basin Over Production

6 If no objections within 15 days, budget is final. If objections, Watermaster Board shall consider them within 10 days.

5 (a) Develop improved estimates of the natural and secondary recharge within the Basin; (b) develop & implement a program for collecting groundwater production, water use, and land 
use data for the the Basin and appropriate adjacent areas; (c) develop a suitable groundwater model fo the Basin and appropriate adjacent areas; (d) develop a plan of action to be 
implemented to avoid various adverse effects in the Basin, including seawater intrusion; and (e) develop a plan of action to contain seawater intrusion, should it occur. Include a timeline to 
secure both non-native water and recycled water.



SEASIDE GROUNDWATER BASIN WATERMASTER
CRITICAL MILESTONE DATES

...adjudicate rights of various parties... and ...provide for the long-term management of the Seaside Basin ...by reducing the drawdown to the level of Natural Safe Yield.

Milestones
Administrative 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Board Terms
Budget (Administrative6 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan
Budget (Operations)6 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan = Complete
Budget (Replenishment)6 7-Mar 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan 15-Jan = Yet to be c

= Scheduled
Watermaster Board Regular Meeting Schedule 7-Mar-07 4-Apr-07 2-May-07 6-Jun-07 3-Jul-07 1-Aug-07 5-Sep-07 3-Oct-07 7-Nov-07 5-Dec-07

Operations
Critical Dates 27-Mar-06 17-May-06 31-Jul-06 31-Aug-06 30-Sep-06 31-Oct-06 30-Nov-06 31-Dec-06 12-Jan-07 31-Jan-07 28-Feb-07 13-Mar-07 27-Mar-07 31-Mar-07 30-Apr-07 31-May-07 11-Jun-07 30-Jun-07
Adjudicaton ordered by Court and filed

Monitoring and Management Plan submitted to Court for review
Watermaster submission of a revised Monitoring and Management Plan and 
Replenishment Assessment Calculation to the Court

Service Contract for Well Installation and Implementation of BMMP
1-Year Anniversary of Adjudication: Provide further estimates, programs and 
plans5

Report to Court designation of sites for drilling groundwater monitoring wells 
required by BMMP

Timelines
Groundwater Modeling for Seaside Basin Through Consultant
1. Review groundwater models, select best model for enhancement
2. Develop scope of services & budget for model enhancement project To be determined at 3/7/07 Board meeting
3. Advertise, select consultant, execute contract To be determined at 3/7/07 Board meeting
4. Complete model development & calibration, run scenario evaluation, develop 
improved estimates of basin rechrage and safe-yield
5. Provide training in use of model to Watermaster TAC

Seaside Basin Management Program
1. Develop scope of services and budget for consultant
2. Advertise, select consultant, execute contract

3. Develop BMMP, Basin Watermaster Database, and data and analysis protocol
4. Evaluate options for importation of supplemental water supplies into the Basin, 
develop action plan
5. Using groundwater model from task above, analyze & develop strategies for 
improved basin management
6. Develop action plan to avoid adverse impacts on basin
7. Draft Basin Management Plan for Watermaster review
8. Produce final BMMP

Basin Monitor Well Construction
1. Develop scope of services and RFP for consultant program oversight To be determined at 3/7/07 Board meeting
2. Review proposals, secure oversight consultant contract To be determined at 3/7/07 Board meeting
3. Oversight consultant completes site acquisition approvals
4. Develop scope of services and request bids for drilling/monitor wells
5. Review bids, secure contract(s)
6. Drill, equip and collect initial monitoring data
7. Prepare and submit completion report to Watermaster

Creation of Consolidated Basic Groundwater Resource Database
1. Develop database RFP To be determined at 3/7/07 Board meeting
2. Review proposals, select consultant To be determined at 3/7/07 Board meeting
3. Develop and approve database format
4. Populate database (historical data from all sources)
5. Populate database (current monitoring data)
6. Prepare database documentation report

Other Critical Dates 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Each Producer1 is authorized to Produce its Production Allocation2 within the 
designated Subarea1 in each of the first three Water Years.3 Alternative 
Producers may change to Standard Production.

1-Oct 1-Oct 1-Oct

Each Water Year by November 15th, the Watermaster will determine and levy a 
Replenishment Assessment4 on each Standard Producer1, with payment due 
from Producer 40 days after the levy is mailed 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov 15-Nov

After the close of each Water Year, the Watermaster will determine and levy a 
Replenishment Assessment4 against all Producers1 that incurred Operating Yield 
Over Production during the Water Year, with payment due from Producer by 
January 15th. 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov 30-Nov

California American Water is to submit annually to the Watermaster any 
augmentation to the water supply for possible credit toward Replenishment 
Assessment Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually

Water level monitoring - monthly data collection from all members       Reported: Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually

Water quality monitoring - yearly data collection from all members     Reported: Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually

Summary report of water resources data to all members/parties      Reported: Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly Quarterly

Commencing with the fourth Water Year and Triennially thereafter, the Operating Yield for both Subareas will be decreased 
by 10% until the Operating Yield is equivalent to the Natural Safe Yield unless by recharge or reclaimed water use results in 
a decrease in production of Native Water as required by the decision.

Operating yield could decrease 10% every 
three years on October 1st until it is the 
equivalent of Natural Safe Yield

75% of the Operating Yield 
of 5,600 af could be 
decreased 10% Jan 1, 2009



Seaside Basin Watermaster Sentinel Wells Project

Workschedule

Weeks after Contract Execution (2/20/07)
Task Description 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
Task 1 Project Management/Meetings
Task 2 Permitting
Task 3 Well Network Review
Task 4 Well Construction
Task 5 Initial Data Collection
Task 6 Reporting



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

1

             VIII. F. 
 
 
SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN 
A Professional Corporation  
STUART L. SOMACH, ESQ. (SBN 090959) 
SANDRA K. DUNN,  ESQ. (SBN 119161) 
NICHOLAS A. JACOBS, ESQ. (SBN 210091)  
813 Sixth Street, Third Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814-4407 
Telephone:  (916) 446-7979 
Facsimile:  (916) 446-8199 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff and Cross-Defendant 
CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER 
 
 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MONTEREY 
 
 
 

CALIFORNIA AMERICAN WATER, 
 
   Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
CITY OF SEASIDE; CITY OF  
MONTEREY; CITY OF SAND CITY; 
CITY OF DEL REY OAKS; SECURITY 
NATIONAL GUARANTY, INC.; 
GRANITE ROCK COMPANY, INC.; 
D.B.O. DEVELOPMENT COMPANY NO. 
27, INC.; MURIEL E. CALABRESE 1987 
TRUST; ALDERWOODS GROUP 
(CALIFORNIA), INC.; PASADERA 
COUNTRY CLUB, LLC; LAGUNA SECA 
RESORT, INC; BISHOP MC INTOSH & 
MC INTOSH, a general partnership; THE 
YORK SCHOOL, INC.; and DOES 1 
through 1,000, Inclusive, 

 
   Defendants. 

 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. M66343 
 
REPORT ON STATUS OF 
CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY 
MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM 
 
(Assigned to Hon. Roger D. Randall, Ret.) 
  
 
 
 
 
 

MONTEREY PENINSULA WATER 
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT, 
 
   Intervenor. 

) 
) 
) 
) 

 



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

2

MONTEREY COUNTY WATER 
RESOURCES AGENCY, 
 
   Intervenor. 

) 
) 
) 
) 

AND RELATED CROSS-ACTIONS  ) 
       ) 
  
// 
 California American Water, on behalf of the Seaside Groundwater Basin Watermaster 

Committee, respectfully submits this report for the Court’s consideration.  Since the Court’s 

rulings at the January 12, 2007 hearing, three significant actions have occurred regarding 

implementation of the Seaside Basin Monitoring and Management Program (MMP).  These 

actions are detailed below. 

 1. Report from MPMWD, Included in 2006 Watermaster Report, On Water  
Quality Monitoring Results       

 
 
  Attachment 6 to the 2006 Watermaster Report explains the findings of the MPWMD’s 

Fall 2006 water quality monitoring tests.  In summary, those tests of the existing Seaside Basin 

sentinel well network found no indications of seawater intrusion.  Pursuant to order of this 

Court, water quality monitoring will continue on a quarterly basis with reports to follow within 

90 days therefrom. 

 2. Execution of Contract with Martin Feeney to Perform Planning and Installation  
of Additional Sentinel Monitoring Wells; Work Has Commenced      

 
 
  On February 20, 2007, the Watermaster executed a contract with hydrogeologist Martin 

Feeney to plan and install additional sentinel wells (Mr. Feeney’s contract is attached hereto as 

Exhibit A).  Mr. Feeney worked closely with Watermaster staff to quickly develop a sentinel 

well plan.  Even before the contract was executed, Mr. Feeney, in cooperation with staff from 

the Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, met twice with representatives from the 

California Resources Agency’s Division of State Parks to identify possible wells sites and 

discuss permitting issues.  These meetings were productive and resulted in identification of four 

ideal well sites.  Subject to the permitting process, Mr. Feeney received tentative approval to 



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

3

drill wells at these sites.  The permitting and planning process are currently underway and, as 

shown on the schedule attached to the contract, Mr. Feeney anticipates drilling to begin eleven 

weeks from execution of the contract –approximately mid-May 2007. 

 Mr. Feeney’s contract is not to perform all aspects of the Monitoring and Management 

Program.  His work focuses on installing the additional sentinel wells – a priority established by 

the Court.  As explained in the work plan attached to Mr. Feeney’s contract, the wells he intends 

to install are different than those described in the MMP.  Instead of installing multiple wells with 

varying screened zones at each site, he proposes to drill a single well at each site with one 

screening at the bottom.  Mr. Feeney believes the single well approach is ideal for monitoring 

changes in basin salinity, and drilling only one well at each site is significantly less costly.  The 

wells use a probe technology that can detect changes in conductivity throughout all depths of the 

well (the probe obtains readings through the casing of the well).  On a quarterly basis, the probe 

testing would record data on conductivity, and any changes in conductivity would alert 

Watermaster to the potential for seawater intrusion.  Mr. Feeney’s work plan contains a full 

explanation of the benefits and characteristics of the proposed wells. 

 3. Revised MMP and Scope of Work      

 [Discussion to be determined based on decisions of Watermaster at March 7, 2007 

meeting].  

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
      SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN 
 
 
 
Dated:  March 13, 2007   By       
        Nicholas A. Jacobs 
 
       Attorneys for California American Water 



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

1

PROOF OF SERVICE 

 
 I am employed in the County of Sacramento; my business address is Hall of Justice 
Building, 813 Sixth Street, Third Floor, Sacramento, California; I am over the age of 18 years 
and not a party to the foregoing action. 
 
 On March 13, 2007, I served a true and correct copy of  
 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY 
MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

 
 
 X   (by mail) on all parties in said action listed below, in accordance with Code of Civil 
Procedure §1013a(3), by placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope in a 
designated area for outgoing mail, addressed as set forth below.  At Somach, Simmons & Dunn, 
mail placed in that designated area is given the correct amount of postage and is deposited that 
same day, in the ordinary course of business, in a United States mailbox in the City of 
Sacramento, California. 
 

SEE ATTACHED SERVICE LIST 
 

_X_ (by e-mail) to the persons at the email addresses set forth on the attached E-Mail Service 
List. 
 
      (by personal delivery) by personally delivering a true copy thereof to the person and at 
the address set forth below: 
 
      (by facsimile transmission) to the person at the address and phone number set forth 
below: 
 
 
 
 I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct under the laws of 
the State of California.  Executed on March 13, 2007, at Sacramento, California. 
 
 
 
 
             
       Marlene Martin 
 



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

2

SERVICE LIST 
 

J. Terry Schwartz 
Craig A. Parton 
Price, Postel & Parma 
200 E. Carrillo Street,  
Suite 400 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101-2190 
Facsimile:  (805) 965-3978 
 

Attorneys for Intervenor Monterey  
Peninsula Water Management District 

Thomas D. Roth 
Law Offices of Thomas D. Roth 
One Market, Spear Tower,  
Suite 3600 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
Facsimile:  (415) 435-2086 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
Security National Guaranty, Inc. 

Jacqueline M. Zischke 
Virginia A. Hines 
Lombardo & Gilles 
318 Cayuga Street 
P.O. Box 2119 
Salinas, CA 93902-2119 
Facsimile:  (831) 754-2011 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
Laguna Seca Resort, Inc. 
 

Robert Allan Goodin 
Anne Hartman 
James Squeri 
Goodin, MacBride, Squeri, Ritchie & Day, 
LLP 
505 Sansome, Suite 900 
San Francisco, CA 94111 
Facsimile:  (415) 398-4321 
 

On behalf of Defendant 
Pasadera Country Club, LLC 

James Heisinger 
Heisinger Buck Morris et al. 
P. O. Box 5427 
Carmel, CA 93921-5427 
Facsimile:  (831) 625-0145 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
City of Sand City 

David C. Sweigert 
Fenton & Keller 
2801 Monterey-Salinas Highway 
P.O. Box 791 
Monterey, CA 93942-0791 
Facsimile:  (831) 373-7219 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
D.B.O. Development Company 



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

3

Rob Wellington 
Wellington Law Offices 
857 Cass Street, Suite D 
Monterey, CA 93940 
Facsimile:  (831) 373-7106 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
City of Del Rey Oaks 

Scott S. Slater 
Russell McGlothlin 
Hatch and Parent 
21 East Carrillo Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101-2782 
Facsimile:  (805) 965-4333 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
City of Seaside 

Donald G. Freeman, City Attorney 
Law Offices of Perry and Freeman 
P.O. Box 805 
Carmel, CA 93921 
Facsimile:  (831) 624-5839 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
City of Seaside 

Deborah Mall 
Office of the City Attorney 
City Hall 
Monterey, CA 93940 
Facsimile:  (831) 373-1634 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
City of Monterey 

Mark Pearson 
Iverson, Yoakum, Papiano & Hatch 
1 Wilshire Bldg., 27th Fl. 
624 S. Grand Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90017 
Facsimile:  (213) 629-4563 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
Mission Memorial Park 

Brian Finegan 
Law Offices of Brian Finegan 
P.O. Box 2058 
Salinas, CA 93902 
Facsimile:  (831) 757-9329 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
Granite Rock Company 

Michael Albov 
Hudson, Martin, Ferrante & Street 
P.O. Box 112 
Monterey, CA 93942-0112 
Facsimile:  (831) 375-0131 
 

Attorneys for Defendant 
Muriel E. Calabrese 1987 Trust 

David Laredo 
DeLay & Laredo 
606 Forest Avenue 
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
Facsimile:  (831) 646-0377 
 

Attorneys for Intervenor Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District 



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

4

James J. Cook 
Horan, Lloyd, Karachale, et al. 
499 Van Buren Street 
Monterey, CA 93940 
Facsimile:  (831) 373-8302 
 

Attorney for Defendant The York School 

Eric N. Robinson 
Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann &  
   Girard 
400 Capitol Mall, 27th Floor 
Sacramento, CA  95814 
Facsimile:  (916) 325-4555 
 

Attorneys for 
Bishop McIntosh & McIntosh 

Irven L. Grant 
Office of County Counsel 
County of Monterey 
168 West Alisal St., 3rd Floor 
Salinas, CA 93901-2680 
Facsimile:  (831) 755-5283 
 

Attorneys for County of Monterey 

Kevin M. O’Brien 
Downey, Brand 
555 Capitol Mall, 10th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Facsimile:  (916) 444-2100 
 

Attorneys for Intervenor Monterey  
County Water Resources Agency 

John Garrick 
Larson, Garrick & Lightfoot, LLP 
633 West Fifth St., Suite 1750 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
Facsimile:  (213) 404-4123 
 

Attorneys for Alderwood Group, Inc. dba 
Mission Memorial Park 

Dewey Evans 
Watermaster Executive Officer 
2600 Garden Road, Suite 228 
Monterey, CA  93940 
 

Watermaster Executive Officer 

Steve Leonard 
Vice President and Manager 
California American Water 
50 Ragsdale Dr., Suite 100 
P.O. Box 951 
Monterey, CA 93940-5758 
 

Robert Costa 
Laguna Seca Golf Ranch 
10520 York Road 
Monterey, CA 93940 
 

Kelly Morgan 
City Administrator 
City of Sand City 
1 Sylvan Park 
Sand City, CA 93955 
 

Bill Mitchell [NEED CURRENT ADDY] 
P.O. Box 2157 
Yucca Valley, CA 92286 



SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

 
REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSULTANT TO OVERSEE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM; REQUEST TO MODIFY MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

5

Mayor Dan Albert 
City of Monterey 
City Manager’s Office Attn:  Elaine Ramos 
Monterey, CA 93940 
 

Mayor Ralph Rubio 
City of Seaside 
440 Harcourt Avenue 
Seaside, CA 93955 
 

Mayor Joseph Russell 
650 Canyon Del Rey Road 
Del Rey Oaks, CA 93940 

Jerry Smith 
District 4 Supervisor 
2616 1st Avenue 
Marina, CA 93933 

 

 



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
SOMACH, SIMMONS & DUNN 
A Professional Corporation 

 
 

 
NOTICE OF THE 2006 ANNUAL REPORT 6 

E-MAIL SERVICE LIST 
 

David Pendergrass <sandcitymyr@aol.com>, ' 
Jeff Haferman' haferman@ci.monterey.ca.us
Paul Bruno <paul@mpe2000.com
Barbara Carballo <bcarballo@ci.seaside.ca.us
Curtis Weeks <weeksc@co.monterey.ca.us
David Berger <david@mpwmd.dst.ca.us
Diana Ingersoll <Dingersoll@ci.seaside.ca.us
Elizabeth Gianola <gianola@horanlegal.com
Fred Meurer <meurer@ci.monterey.ca.us
Judi Lehman' <jlehman@redshift.com
Kathleen Thomasberg <thomasbergk@co.monterey.ca.us
Laura J. Paxton" <laura.paxton@paxtonadhoc.com
Les Turnbeaugh <turnbeau@ci.monterey.ca.us
MCWRA (e-mail)" <lampor@co.monterey.ca.us
MPWMD <arlene@mpwmd.dst.ca.us
Nancy Rose <rose@ci.monterey.ca.us
Pat Kelly <PKelly@oroscogroup.com
Ray Corpuz <rcorpuz@ci.seaside.ca.us
Ron Langford <droclerk@redshift.com
Tim O'Halloran <TO'Halloran@ci.seaside.ca.us
Tom Bunosky tom.bunosky@amwater.com
Ann Hartman <ahartman@gmssr.com
Bob McKenzie bobmck@mbay.net
Charles W. Kemp" <charles.kemp@amwater.com
Darby Fuerst <darby@mpwmd.dst.ca.us
Ed Ghandor <sng1@speakeasy.net
Heidi A. Quinn" <heidi@laredolaw.net
Janna Aldrete <jaldrete@sierraholdings.net
Jim Markman <jim@rwglaw.com
Joe Oliver <joe@mpwmd.dst.ca.us
John Fischer <wyrdjon@yahoo.com
John P. Christian" <jchristian@tobinlaw.com
Larry Silver larrysilver@celproject.net
Lawrence E. Gallery" <gallery100@rbf.com
Michael Stamp <stampoffice@yahoo.com
Nancy Isakson <nisakson@mbay.net
Patrick Orosco <porosco@oroscogroup.com
Richard Simonitch rsimonitch@mt.cdengineers.com
Roger K. Masuda" <rmasuda@calwaterlaw.com
Ron Scholl <rscholl@fentonkeller.com
Sarah Hardgrave <shardgrave@rbf.com
Sierra Club <ventana@mbay.net
Steve Beals <steve@carmellaw.com
Tom Squeri <tsqueri@Graniterock.com
Tyla Montgomery <tmontgomery@rbf.com> 

 

mailto:haferman@ci.monterey.ca.us
mailto:tom.bunosky@amwater.com
mailto:bobmck@mbay.net
mailto:larrysilver@celproject.net
mailto:rsimonitch@mt.cdengineers.com


IX. 
 

INFORMATIONAL 
REPORTS 

 








































































	03-07-07 WM Agenda (2).pdf
	Soper Community Center, 220 Coe Avenue 
	Watermaster board: 
	I. CALL TO ORDER 
	II. ROLL CALL 
	VI.      CONSENT CALENDAR 
	  
	        A.   COMMITTEE REPORTS 



	Approval of Minutes.pdf
	Sp. Minutes 01-31-07.pdf
	Minutes, 02-07-07.pdf
	CONSENT CALENDAR.pdf
	Bill payment narrative-Feb.,07.pdf
	Feb.07-Request for Payment.pdf
	030707 WM agenda Fin. Stat. Narrative.pdf
	Admin fund budget vs actual 022807 (2).pdf
	Ops fund budget vs actual 022807.pdf
	Cap fund budget vs actual 022807 (2).pdf
	Replen fund budget vs actual 022807 (2).pdf
	OLD BUSINESS.pdf
	TECHNICAL COMMITTEE.pdf
	SB MMP Implementation Plan.pdf
	March 1, 2007
	Presented to:
	Seaside Basin Watermaster
	Technical Advisory Committee
	1.  Background
	2.  Phase 1 - Management and Monitoring Program Implementation
	Monitoring Well Program Recommended Modifications
	Comprehensive Basin Production, Water Level and Water Quality Monitoring Program
	Basin Management
	Seawater Intrusion Contingency Program

	3. Phase 2 - Management and Monitoring Program Implementation
	4. Supplemental Supply and Other Related Projects
	4.1California American Water - Coastal Water Project
	4.2Monterey Peninsula Water Management District Phase 1 ASR Project
	4.3California American Water - Seaside Basin Adjudication Compliance Project

	Appendices
	Appendix A
	Phase 1 Management and Monitoring Plan
	Scope of Work, Schedule and Budget
	Deliverables

	Appendix B
	Phase 2 Management and Monitoring Plan
	Scope of Work, Schedule and Budget
	Appendix C
	Scope of Work for the CWP ASR Program
	Task 6. Added Tasks

	Appendix D
	CWP ASR Task 1 Technical Memorandum – Existing Data Review
	Appendix E
	Phase CWP ASR Task 2 Technical Memorandum – Test Well Site Development Plan
	Appendix F
	MPWMD Phase 1 ASR Environmental Impact Report – Executive Summary and Project Description
	Budget-Schedule.pdf
	T1- Summary Table
	Master Task List 


	NEW BUSINESS.pdf
	Water Account 2007-1.pdf
	Sheet1

	Water Account 2007-2.pdf
	Sheet2

	Water Account 2007-3.pdf
	Sheet3

	3-1-07RulesRegsRDLN.pdf
	Milestones linear.pdf
	Milestones.pdf
	Milestones - Feeney.pdf
	Feeney Wells Timeline

	3-13-07StatusRpt.pdf
	E-MAIL SERVICE LIST 

	INFORMATIONAL REPORTS.pdf
	2-13-07 Feeney Contract w_sigs.pdf



